


CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of GLORY
MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBEE

To Our Shareholders,

I would like to present to the shareholders the annual report
of GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020.

In 2020, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$292.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately
15.9% as compared to 2019. This year, the Group recorded a
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$4.6 million (2019: Profit: HK$12.3 million). Both revenue
and profit has decreased in the year ended 31 December 2020
as we have suffered from the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
(“CQOVID-19”) pandemic.

Our electronics business was affected by the weakened
consumer demand for electronic products throughout the year
and the low production capacity and efficiences of our Group’s
production facility in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
during quarter 1 2020. We have used our best endeavour to
catch up for the losses despite these unfavourable external
factors which hit us most severely at the beginning of 2020
and finally limit the drop of the revenue and gross profit of
electronics business to 6.9% and 8.8% respectively in the year
ended 31 December 2020 comparing to the year ended 31
December 2019.

Unfortunately, the master-planning and architectural design
business was more severely affected by the outbreak of
the COVID-19 pandemic. In 2020, revenue and gross profit
decreased to approximately HK$31.1 million and HK$7.5
million respectively (2019: approximately HK$67.1 million and
approximately HK$16.6 million respectively), representing an
decrease of approximately 53.6% in revenue as our design
projects in the PRC were reluctantly suspended due to the
outbreak of COVID-19.

The financial position of the Group remains strong. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had cash on hand of approximately
HK$56.4 million without any outstanding bank borrowing.
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While our traditional business model will continue to be
adversely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021, the
Directors are planning to capitalise our existing foundations
of global customer network and strong cash position and
executing business plans to foster the organic growth in
the Company. We have plans, and are in fact progressively
implementing such initiatives:

o explore new products in the electronic industry and
design industry;

o develop new brands of innovative products with the
latest technologies in the design industry;

. build e-commerce and omnichannel retail for our
electronic products; and

. redesigning our production lines and supply chains to
cope with the challenges brought to us by the ever-
changing external conditions, including the geopolitical
risks and the disruptions brought to us by the global
pandemic.

Notwithstanding the challenges ahead of us, the Directors
remain confident in the results of the Group in the coming year.

Taking this opportunity, | should like to express my sincere
gratitude to all our customers, suppliers, business partners,
employees and shareholders for their continuous and valuable
supports to the Group. | shall lead my team to persist with the
best endeavours in striving for optimal development for the
Group and returns for our shareholders in the times to come.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil)
as the Directors are expecting an unstable external business
environment in 2021.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER FOR ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (“AGM”)

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 25 June 2021 to Wednesday, 30 June 2021 (both days
inclusive), for the purposes of determining the entitlements
of the shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM to be held
on Wednesday, 30 June 2021. No transfer of Shares will be
registered during the period. In order to qualify to attend and
vote at the AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, by no later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 24 June 2021.

Wang Li Feng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaging in design, manufacture and sale
of connectivity products mainly for computers, computer
peripheral products, multi-media consumable electronic
products, communication products, automobile electronics
accessories, wire harness and medical equipment (the
“Electronics Business”). The Group is one of the leading Video
Graphics Array (“VGA”) cables manufacturers in the world.
To diversify the Group’s business and seek new exponential
growth, the Group is also engaging in master-planning and
architectural design business (the “Architectural Design
Business”) which involves master-planning work, general
design work and architectural schematic design work.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
The Electronics Business

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year 2020”), the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic globally has imposed
adverse impact on the consumer demand for electronic
products globally and the Group’s production capacity and
efficiencies in the PRC. In order to limit the impact of such
disruption, the Group has used its best endeavour to fulfill its
committed sales orders, remain in close contacts and liaise
with its customers to closely follow up the delivery schedules
and upcoming sales orders.

In Year 2020, the revenue of the Electronics Business decreased
by approximately 6.9% as compared with the revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (“Year 2019”). In Year 2020,
the Electronic Business contributed revenue and gross profit
in the amounts of approximately HK$261.6 million (2019:
approximately HK$280.9 million) and approximately HK$39.1
million (2019: HK$42.9 million) to the Group, respectively. The
gross profit margin remained stable at approximately 15.0% in
Year 2020 (2019: approximately 15.3%).

The Group will continue to assess the impact of COVID-19
on the Group’s business operations and will take appropriate
measures as and when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmL KD

The Architectural Design Business

The revenue recognised from this business segment had been
growing satisfactorily since the introduction of this business
in the third quarter of 2017. However, due to the outbreak of
COVID-19 during Year 2020, some of our design projects in
the PRC were suspended. This business segment contributed
revenue of approximately HK$31.1 million in Year 2020 (2019:
approximately HK$67.1 million), decreased by approximately
53.6%. This business segment contributed gross profit of
approximately HK$7.5 million in Year 2020, compared to
approximately HK$16.6 million in the Year 2019. The gross
profit margin remained stable at approximately 24.2% in Year
2020 (2019: approximately 24.6%).

Having considered the unfavourable and uncertain economic
situations, the Directors maintain a conservative view as to the
results of the Group in the coming quarters and the Company
will pay close attention to the market condition and the
development of the outbreak of COVID-19.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$7.3 million in Year 2020 (2019: approximately HK$8.9
million). The decrease was mainly due to the management
effort on cost controls that resulted in decrement in a greater
extent than the decrease in revenue.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses were approximately HK$47.8
million in Year 2020 (2019: approximately HK$37.9 million),
representing an increase of approximately 26.3%. The increase
in Year 2020 compared to Year 2019 was mainly caused by a
one-off additional royalty charged for the use of licensed label
on our products and legal and professional fee in relation to
certain corporate restructurings in our Group that took place
during Year 2020.

Net Loss

The Group reported a net loss attributable to owners of the
Company for Year 2020 of approximately HK$4.6 million
(2019: net profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$12.3 million). The decrease was attributable
to the adverse impact of COVID-19 to both segments of
Electronic Business and Architectural Design Business.

Loss per share
The basic loss per share in Year 2020 was approximately

HKO0.67 cents, while the basic earnings per share for Year 2019
was approximately HK1.89 cents (re-presented).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current assets,
cash and bank balances and equity attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$55.4 million,
HK$56.4 million and HK$133.7 million (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$54.9 million, HK$79.9 million and HK$129.6
million) respectively. The current ratio of the Group as at 31
December 2020, expressed as current assets over current
liabilities, was maintained at the level of approximately 1.45
(31 December 2019: approximately 1.43). The Group had no
interest-bearing debt as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: nil).

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group is defined as a percentage of
total debts at the end of the reporting period divided by total
equity at the end of the reporting period. The Group did not
have any debt as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). There was
no borrowing cost incurred during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil), hence no gearing ratio of the Group was
presented.

During Year 2020, the shares of a subsidiary in the PRC were
fully pledged as security in order to procure a loan facility of
RMB29.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$34.6 million)
from an independent third party. As at 31 December 2020, the
full amount remained available for future drawdown.

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during Year
2020 amounted to approximately HK$6.0 million (2019:
approximately HK$4.0 million). Capital commitments contracted
for but not provided for in the financial statements of the Group
as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$Nil
(2019: approximately HK$382,000).

Capital Structure

On 3 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing
agent placed 64,000,000 placing shares at the placing price of
HK$0.1 per placing share to certain independent placees. The
net proceeds from the aforesaid placing, net of related issued
costs and expenses, will be used for general working capital
of the Group. The share capital of the Company was then
increased from HK$6.4 million to HK$7.0 million.

Save as mentioned above, the Company did not run any capital
exercise in Year 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmL KD

OUTLOOK
The Architectural Design Business

The Directors will consider introducing an interior design
business which includes home decoration, furniture, interior
design accessories for both residential and commercial
spaces to complement the Group’s current architectural
design business. With our brilliant design products and strong
marketing channels in the PRC, the Group intends to create a
new market segment of providing a living aesthetic consulting
services which combined interior design-based services and
sales of interior accessories under our own brand name.

Adhering to our mission of "We never design for ourselves" and
based on our deep understanding of market needs, the Group
constantly change our architectural design strategy and provide
our customers with innovative solutions. The Group is going
to align the extensive experience in the field of construction
engineering with virtual reality (“VR”) technologies to deliver a
superior engineering consulting services to customers.

Riding on the trend of "Internet plus Cultural Creativity", the
Group target to offer a thorough one-stop integrated design
services by enhancing the internet interactive platform with
users.

The Electronics Business

In recent years, the Sino-US trade conflict made the operation
of the Electronic Business very challenging. For example, the
increased tariffs lowered the demand of export of electronic
products to the US. Several former major customers in Japan,
South Korea and other regions are gradually shifting their
supply chains to Southeast Asia. We are looking at possible
options to geographically diversify our production lines in
Southeast Asia and India, where appropriate, in the future
for establishing a stable supply chain of raw materials and
components to cope with the challenges from trade wars and
the rising demand of the major customers.

Embarking upon our strategy to develop omnichannel
marketing strategy, we have built an online store on renowned
e-commerce platform in China starting December 2020. In
the near future, the Group will continue to invest resources in
expanding our online store by partnering with at least 5 more
e-commerce platforms and social media partners in China and
overseas.

Summary

The Directors have a mutil-faceted plan to increase shareholder
value by implementing new strategies to maximize asset
utilization and value, to pursue growth through M&A and
partnerships, and to find strategic investors that will bring
synergies to the Group's businesses.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Li Feng (“Mr. Wang”), aged 57, was appointed
and has been an executive Director of the Group since 15
September 2016. Mr. Wang is the chairman of the Board, the
chairman of the nomination committee, executive committee
and the strategy and development committee, a member of
the remuneration committee and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a master degree
in architecture from Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology
in November 1991. Mr. Wang is also a director of PT Design,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. He worked as the
chief representative for Peddle Thorp Architects Melbourne
Asia Shenzhen Office (R AT BHBEMANREERTTHRA A
IR R EE) from February 1998 to January 2003. He has been
the executive director of Peddle Thorp Consultants (Shenzhen)
Co. Ltd (1aEZ:mOFY) BE 2 7)) since January 2003 and
has been the chairman of PT Architecture Design (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (18722551 (CFYI) BBR A 7)) since March
2009.

Mr. Yu Sanlong (“Mr. Yu”), aged 47, was appointed and has
been an executive Director of the Group since 5 December
2019. He is a member of the executive committee and also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company'’s electronics
business.

Mr. Yu has over 24 years of experience in the electronics
industry. He has extensive experience in research and
development and manufacture of electronic products and
management of electronics companies in China, Hong Kong
and Singapore. Mr. Yu is a director and a co-founder of NIIP
Limited, which is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability focusing on provision of services regarding
data encryption and password management to customers in
North America, in April 2014. Prior to co-founding NIIP Limited,
Mr. Yu worked in various multinational and listed companies,
such as International Business Machines Corporate (IBM) and
Tyco Electronics (currently known as TE Connectivity), where
he was mainly responsible for managing the research and
development and manufacture of various electronic products
for medical and automobile industries.

Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor’s degree in machinery and
equipment manufacturing engineering from Harbin Engineering
University, China in July 1997.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEASHE

Mr. Fan Xiaoling (“Mr. Fan”), aged 35, was appointed and has
been an executive Director of the Group since 5 December
2019. He is a member of the executive committee and also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company'’s electronics
business.

Mr. Fan has over 13 years of experience in the electronics
industry. He has strong abilities of supply chain strategy,
sales and operation planning, demand planning, forecasting
development, quality management, logistics management
and project management. He has extensive and successful
experiences in North America, South East Asia, Finland,
Germany, Brazil, Mexico, and United Kingdom market. He
is the director of supply chain management of LTL Group,
LLC., where he is mainly responsible for the supply chain
management of semi-conductors and electronic products.

Mr. Fan obtained a Bachelor of Finance degree from East China
Jiaotong University, China in June 2008.

Ms. Lee Jui-lan (“Ms. Lee”), aged 59, was appointed and has
been an executive Director of the Group since 5 December
2019. She is a member of the executive committee and also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company’s electronics
business.

Ms. Lee has over 31 years of experience in the electronics
industry. She has extensive experience in software
development, marketing electronic products and management
of companies in Taiwan. She worked in Intertek Testing
Services Taiwan Ltd., which is principally engaged in testing,
inspecting and certifying electronic products, for more than
10 years with the last position of the general manager of the
electronic business unit principally responsible for the overall
management, which is a subsidiary of Intertek Group PLC, a
company listed in the London Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lee obtained a bachelor of Electronics Engineering degree
from National Taipei University of Technology, Taiwan in June
1984.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEDENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Fong Chi Wai, Alex (“Dr. Fong”), aged 64, was appointed
and has been an independent non-executive Director of
the Group since 10 January 2019. He is a member of the
audit committee, and is primarily responsible for providing
independent advice to the Board.

Dr. Fong and he is currently a director of HK Electric
Investments Manager Limited and a director of The Hongkong
Electric Company, Limited. Dr. Fong was the chief executive
officer of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce (the
“Chamber”) from September 2006 to August 2011. Prior to
joining the Chamber, he served in the civil service for over
25 years, holding various senior positions in the Government
of Hong Kong. Dr. Fong has a long record of public service
providing both operational and policy-formulation expertise.
Dr. Fong has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of HK Electric Investments and HK Electric Investments
Limited, a company listed on the Exchange (stock code: 2638)
since December 2013 and an independent non-executive
director of TOM Group Limited, a company listed on the
Exchange (stock code: 2383) since December 2019. He was an
independent non-executive director of Power Assets Holdings
Ltd., a company listed on the Exchange (stock code: 6) and
a substantial holder of Share Stapled Units for the purpose of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) from December 2012 to
January 2014.

Dr. Fong received a Bachelor of Social Science degree in
Business and Economics from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1978, a Master of Technology Management degree
in Global Logistics Management and a Master of Science
degree in Global Finance from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology in April 2007 and May 2009
respectively, a Doctor of Business Administration degree from
City University of Hong Kong in October 2017 and a Doctor
of Philosophy degree from City University of Hong Kong in
October 2020.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEASHE

Dr. Yan Ka Shing (%13 %), aged 35, was appointed and has
been an independent non-executive Director of the Group
since 5 December 2019. Dr. Yan is the chairman of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee, and a member
of the strategy and development committee, the executive
committee and the nomination committee, where he is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice to the Board.

Dr. Yan has nearly 10 years of experience in the medical
industry and has been employed by the Hospital Authority
since July 2011. He completed his housemanship in the
Hospital Authority from July 2011 to June 2012. He then
became a registered doctor and has served as a medical officer
in various hospitals managed by the Hospital Authority in Hong
Kong, since July 2012.

Dr. Yan obtained his Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery (MBBS) degree from the University of Hong Kong in
November 2011, the Membership of the Royal Colleges of
Physicians of the United Kingdom (MRCP (UK)), a postgraduate
medical diploma in the United Kingdom, in March 2016, and
the Postgraduate Diploma in Infectious Diseases from the
University of Hong Kong (PDipID (HK)) in October 2019. He
was admitted as a member of the Hong Kong College of
Physicians in January 2017, then became Fellow and Specialist
in Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism, and has held
fellowships from the Hong Kong College of Physicians and the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (Medicine), since September
2020 and December 2020, respectively. Also, he has been
a member of the Hong Kong Medical Association since July
2011.

Dr. Yan was appointed and has been an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of nomination committee, a
member of the audit committee and remuneration committee
of Victory Securities (Holdings) Company Limited (stock code:
8540.HK), since 14 June 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Dr. Feng Shen (“Dr. Feng”), aged 32, was appointed and has
been an independent non-executive Director of the Group
since 3 March 2020. He is a member of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee, the nomination committee,
the executive committee and the strategy and development
committee, where he is primarily responsible for providing
independent advice to the Board..

Dr. Feng is an associate member of Association of
International Accountants, Senior International Finance
Manager, a registered PRC lawyer, a member of the Institute
of Public Accountants in Australia, an associate member of
the Association of International Accountants in the United
Kingdom, and holds a number of professional qualification
certificates, including Financial Risk and Regulation Certificate
and Certified Financial Planner. He was a partner of Da Hua
Certified Public Accountants in China. Currently, he is a
Business Director of AVIC Securities Co., Ltd. He is also a tutor
of post-graduate students in University of Chinese Academy of
Sciences, Tianjin University of Finance & Economics, Beihang
University, Jiangsu Normal University, Nanjing Audit University
and Capital University of Economics and Business. After
becoming a PRC sponsor representative in 2015, Dr. Feng has
led different companies through initial public offering, placing
of shares, management of corporate investment and financing,
listing on NEEQ, mergers and acquisitions, restructuring of
claims and debts, restructuring of state-owned enterprises, and
so on. Dr. Feng was honoured by the International Financial
Management Association (IFMA) as 2017 Top Ten Innovative
Figures in International Finance Managers (IFM) in China (2017
FRR 5B IRAT R B+ KEI¥TA M) and IFM Pioneers in the
40th anniversary of China’s Reform and Opening-up (# Bl &
FAPR40EF IFMEE A1), in 2018.

Dr. Feng obtained a bachelor degree in management in July
2011 from Beijing Information Science & Technology University
where he specialised in management science, a master
degree in civil and commercial law in July 2014 and a doctoral
degree in economics and law in December 2014 from China
University of Political Science and Law, a master degree in
business administration in May 2015 from New York Institute
of Technology, a master degree in software engineering and
domain engineering in January 2016 from Beihang University, a
master degree in software engineering and domain engineering
in June 2016 from Tianjin University, a master degree in
software engineering and domain engineering in December
2016 from Huazhong University of Science and Technology,
and a doctoral degree in business administration in August
2018 from EuroPort Business School.
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EEEWRE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Year 2020”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements for the Year 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the review of the business of the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 9 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

During the Year 2020, the Group adopted the following policies
to improve the environmental quality:

o to design and produce connectivity products by taking
into account the possibility of dismantling and recovery
of the components and materials

. to use recycled papers as printing materials whenever
appropriate
o to reduce electricity consumption by switching off any

light and electrical appliances which are not in use

o to choose energy efficiency appliances (with energy
labels showing on prescribed products) with lowest
energy consumption

o to avoid, reduce or control environmental pollution
arising from the Group’s operations and to require
our contractors to adopt and implement similar
environmental measures

. to ensure good management practices by reviewing
them regularly and ensure that they are tuned to the
changing internal and external circumstances

o to comply with all applicable environmental legislation,
standards and regulations
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The Group will put in place additional environmental policies as
and when appropriate or necessary to ensure that its business
operations are conducted in an environmentally responsible
manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The largest and the top five suppliers of the Group accounted
for about 5.8% and 22.6%, respectively, of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year 2020.

The largest and the top five customers of the Group accounted
for about 19.7% and 65.9%, respectively, of the Group’s total
turnover for the Year 2020.

At no time during the Year 2020 did a director, an associate
of a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year 2020 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 50 of this report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 as the Board
is expecting an unstable external business environment in the
year 2021.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 156 of
this report.

FIXED ASSETS

The Group has incurred HK$6.0 million capital expenditure
during the Year mainly due to the purchase of new
environmental friendly production equipment in one of our
manufacturing factories in Guangdong province and the
addition of furniture and fixtures in our various office locations.

Directors’ Report
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Details of these and other movements during the Year 2020 in
the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year
2020, respectively.

LIABILITIES

The Group had no interest-bearing debt as at 31 December
2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year 2020 in the share capital
of the Company are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements for the Year 2020.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$Nil

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year 2020 and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Li Feng (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Sanlong

Mr. Fan Xiaoling

Ms. Lee Jui-lan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Wong Chun (retired on 30 June 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan (resigned on 2 March 2020)
Dr. Hon. Lo Wai Kwok, SBS, MH, JP
(retired on 30 June 2020)
Dr. Fong Chi Wai, Alex
Mr. Lu Yongchao (retired on 30 June 2020)
Dr. Yan Ka Shing
Dr. Feng Shen (appointed on 3 March 2020)
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In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Bye-laws of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation. And, according to
the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 15 to the
GEM listing Rules (“CG Code”), every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with Article 84(2) of the Bye-laws of the
Company, any Director appointed by the Board pursuant to
Article 83(2) shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are
to retire by rotation.

To comply with the above, Mr. Wang Li Feng, Dr. Fong Chi
Wai, Alex and Dr. Feng Shen shall retire from office at the
forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company not
terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short position of
the directors and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associate corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO7”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the
required standards of dealings by directors of listed issuer as
referred to the Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of Chapter 5 of the GEM
Listing Rules and Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

EERROREBRG 2EBRAR
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FefATECER « SIRYR GEM L TARRISE5E 55.46 %
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company ARATEREECE T2 LER
Number of Percentage of
issued issued share
ordinary capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
e 8T HAELTERT
EEEH 54 ZREREE BAEZEDL
Mr. Wang (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 355,620,000 (L) 50.51%
F A (HTEET) Ry AR
Mr. Wang Beneficial owner 20,000,000 (L) 2.84%
FrE BE=HAA
Note: Hiat -
L denotes long position L) A
1. The 355,620,000 shares are held by PT Design Group Holdings Limited 1. FhRAERBE L EHEAH PT Design Group Holdings
(“PT Design”), which is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wang. Limited ([ PT Design | )#5%355,620,0004%f% {5 °
Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors and KB FX#EEEIN  R_E-_FF+_A=+—8 -

chief executive of the Company, nor their associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations at 31
December 2020.

BEARREELZESATARBRBEZBEAR
R RIS E AT AREOZ B e A A SRR
BEEREEIRE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the persons or entities (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who have
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which have been disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

Directors’ Report

EFEHE

EFRERRRAD T KRG RAEBERD 2 E
R/EKRRE

RZZB-ZF+_A=1—R0 REEFLPEK
W%XV%%%%“$ZMXEWK AR
7&@&@%&@#%%%@% ?Zkiii
B(EELRARRAEI2THRABRIN) - IRAEAR
@%%%&%EMW%%M@%$TEZ§£%%
A B RAARE 2 AR B RS MARRER B
BERRIAXRZALTRER(EERARAEE
TTERABRRINIAT -

Number of Percentage of
issued issued share
Ordinary capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
g8 817 HAERATSRIT
BREB 514 ZEREAR BARZzESDLE
PT Design Beneficial Owner 355,620,000 (L) 50.51%
PT Design EnEEA
Mr. Pang Kuo-Shi (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 74,403,000 10.57%
[EE BB 5 A (PifsET) Ry E
Modern Wealth Assets Limited Beneficial owner
(Note 1) 74,403,000 10.57%
Modern Wealth Assets Limited EREEA
(BF7E1)
L denotes long position L ELFE
1. Mr. Pang Guo-Shi is deemed to be interested in the 74,403,000 shares 17 EEBEAAHEARNBERELELE2EEEN R T
held by Modern Wealth Assets Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Modern Wealth Assets Limited fff3% 45 #74,403,0000%
Pang Kuo-Shi fRID R HE A RS ©
SHARE OPTIONS fEaRfE

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out
in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year
2020. During the Year 2020, no share options were granted or
exercised. As at 31 December 2020, no share options were
outstanding.

ARBBEREABFBEEN S _TFE 2GEH
BamRME28 - R-T_TFE - HEBREE
BREHITE - R-F_FF+-_H=1—B  #i#
BB R RTTE
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year 2020 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation on his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above, no person in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO was disclosed as having a notifiable
interest or short position in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

BEROSEER 2L

RoZ-TaE - AA TR ANEA R
SHERIZH - AR A% A AR A AT
DR EIN: L P e b Eedi o

BYFHITES

ARFDEESFELIFATEFRIEGEM £
HIZE5.00(F3 L 2 FEB Y EERE - AAFRAR
ERBUIFMTEFTZHMEY -

FERR

R-F-ZTF+_A=1—0 BLXEEAK
D RAEBERD 2 #m MR R | — BT E 2
SN WA RBIREEZ R AERGIFIBHFE L
TERREREM - BEALNARF D EITRAH
BAATREZEDRIRR

EECEREHER

ARBSEKERRBET L EARFRINEE
—ECTF+ A=+ B LEFEEMREIDAL
MMARREZTEERXNEERRABEAR D ZERA
#] e
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing Connected Transactions

On 4 July 2017, PT Design International Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the Business Cooperation Agreement (as amended and
supplemented by the supplemental business cooperation
agreement dated 28 August 2017) with, Australia PT Design
Consultants Limited (“PT Consultants”) and PT Building
Technology and Science Holding Limited (“PT Technology”) for
the solicitation of the Master planning and Architectural Design
Business from independent developers for a term of three
years from 15 July 2017 to 14 July 2020. PT Consultants was
an associate of Mr. Wang, an executive Director and chairman
of the Board. Under the Business Cooperation Agreement,
unless otherwise requested by the independent developer,
the Master planning and Architectural Design Business
will be first undertaken by the Group as general design
contractor. The Group will be responsible for master planning
and general design work while all architectural schematic
design work will be subcontracted to PT Consultants (or its
subsidiary or associate). In the event that the Master planning
and Architectural Design Business is to be undertaken by
PT Consultants or PT Technology as the general design
contractor at the request of the independent developer, unless
otherwise requested by the independent developer, all master
planning work shall be first subcontracted to the Group. For
details of the Business Cooperation Agreement, please refer
to the circular of the Company dated 6 February 2018. The
Group entered into three subcontracting agreements with
PT Architectual Design (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“PT
Shenzhen”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of PT Consultants)
in June, July and December 2018 respectively in respect of
subcontracting architectural schematic design work from
the Group to PT Shenzhen (collectively the “Continuing
Connected Transactions”), which constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Business Cooperation
Agreement. The aggregate contract sum payable by the Group
to PT Shenzhen was RMB8.2 million (approximately HK$9.3
million).

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

FERERS

R-T—+FLAMB  ARRHEEEEMNB AR
R BERERARERAN SAE R AE
RAR([HERBHE ) MESRERBERBRA
A([ABRR DAL ES A ERE(KAMAZT
—TEFNAZT N\ B TEEG A FHREER &
7)) NIEB BRI ARA S MRERAE
B BT tFEATRAAERE T -_TFH
THRERM=F HEEARNTEERESTS
ETFEIREZHEA - REBEHAFRE - FREL
FEEARTTENRIN  BEREI MREREHAL
BERAEEERRTEANRE A - AEEHEER
REEMEI NGB - MERERA NIRRT
ER D B TRERR(HEMBRRHBEA) - fi
ARGt MRERGT EH B RERER - Al
HHHEAIEEHR AR RN EAE - IR
BURBERARTTENRSI - 2EEERE THFARR
DETAKE - FREXHEERRZFBHFLHA
RABMAE-Z—N\FE_ARBZEK - KEEB
HRERTCRIDBRAR([HEBR
Y (HRBAREMNBRRD DO BRERANTET
EERBERIDBIN —F—NFRA - AR+
AR =0 DB iR FREERXS |) - mit
BREBAEBHRR N ZHEMERS - AEEE
HasRIzenRERARE82HET(49.3
BEET)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 43§ 2020 25



26

Directors’ Report

EEEWRE

There was no new subcontracting agreements entered into
between the Group and PT Consultants (or its subsidiary or
associate) for the year ended 31 December 2020 and since
2018. Set out below are the annual caps (the “Annual Caps”) in
respect of the subcontracting arrangement under the Business
Cooperation Agreement:

Architectural Schematic Design Work

The architectural schematic design work to be subcontracted
by the Group to PT Consultants (or its subsidiary or associate),
in term of aggregate contract sum, shall not exceed HK$75.0
million, HK$75.0 million and HK$37.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
six months ending 30 June 2020 respectively.

Master planning Work

The master-planning work to be subcontracted by PT
Consultants (or its subsidiary or associate) to the Group, in
term of aggregate contract sum, shall not exceed HK$25.0
million, HK$25.0 million and HK$12.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
six months ending 30 June 2020 respectively.

The Annual Caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
held on 28 February 2018.

A summary of significant related party transactions, which do
not constitute connected transactions, made during the Year
2020 is disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.

Connected Transactions

Save as disclosed in this report, during the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group had no transactions which need to
be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

B20184F it - @i_z_viJr A=+—Hit
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those
material related party transactions disclosed in Note 32
to the financial statements did not fall under the definition
of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements (if applicable) under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, PT Shenzhen is wholly-
owned by PT Consultants which is in turn owned as to 27.6%
by Mr. Wang, 22.0% by Mr. Kong Lixing (a former executive
Director who resigned on 5 December 2019) and 13.6% by Mr.
Zhao Guo Xing (a former executive Director who resigned on 5
December 2019).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and
promoted based on their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
determined with regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save for the continuing connected transactions and connected
transactions disclosed above, during the Year 2020, the
following Director had interests in the following business which
were considered to compete or likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group (other than those

business where the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or the Group):

Name of Director

Name of entity which were
considered to compete or

likely to compete with the

business of the Group

Description of
competing Business

EERERBRRREFREK 2 #ES

R EXERFEMER S REET SAREESN -
R-Z-TFE - THEENATRRSELEE
X ERAEEBNAAIERREFZERK(ES
BZIREFURKARDR SIAEEERE 2 %
TERRON) PR R s -

Nature of interests

WRBEREBERERK
EEpE FAEBRRFE2ERERE BREXBHEL REmtE
Wang Li Feng PT Consultants Provision of Architectural Directly holding 27.6%
Design Service (other interest in PT Consultants
than technical and and a director
documentation work)
TEE HEEN RMHBEERFRBGELER BEESARSHERN7.6%1E
FHERSM) m TRESE
PT Shenzhen Provision of Architectural Indirectly holding 27.6%
Design Service (other interest in PT Shenzhen
than technical and through PT Consultants
documentation work) and a director
BERI RHBERREGELER BRBSEAERSARER

Shanghai PT Architecture
Design & Consultant Co.,
Ltd (“Shanghai PT”)

EEmBRERAERABRA
m ([ Eigmm])

AtERSM)

Provision of Architectural
Design Service (other
than technical and
documentation work)

RIEEERFRE GELE®
FTBRSM)
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a director

BIZRA _ LBRE1T%



As (i) each of the above Directors is fully aware of their
fiduciary duty to the Group, and will abstain from voting on
any matter where there is or may be a conflict of interest; (ii)
the Master-planning and Architectural Design Business will
be first undertaken by the Group as general design contractor
under the Business Cooperation Agreement, unless otherwise
requested by independent developers; (iii) unless otherwise
requested by independent developers, all master-planning
work shall be first subcontracted to the Group; (iv) the Group
have the first right of refusal on accepting the architectural
schematic design work unless it is specifically requested by
the independent developers that such work shall be performed
by PT Consultants or PT Architectural; and (v) Mr. Wang has
not involved in the day-to-day management and operation of
Shanghai PT, the Group is capable of carrying its business
independently of and at arm’s length from the businesses
of these entities. Save as disclosed above, the Directors are
not aware of any business and interest of the Directors that
competed or might compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflict of interests which any such person had
or might have with the Group during the Year 2020.

DONATIONS

During the Year 2020, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$5,620.

SUFFICIENCY PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company had, up to the date
of this report, maintained the public float required by the GEM
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and senior management for the Year
2020 in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities.

Directors’ Report
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the Year 2020.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was the auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 who resigned on 26
November 2019. BDO Limited (“BDO”) has been appointed
as the auditor of the Company with effect from 26 November
2019.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year 2020
were audited by BDO. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint BDO as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Li Feng
CHAIRMAN

25 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company complied throughout the Year 2020 with the
code provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they had compiled with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
during the Year 2020. The Company has received, from
each of the independent non-executive Directors, an annual
confirmation on his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORSHIP DURING AND AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

The nomination committee met for 2 times during the year
ended 31 December 2020 to, among others, introduce new
talent to the Board and fulfill the succession needs of the Board
with an aim to creating sustainable values for the Company’s
shareholders.

Resignation of Director

. Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan (“Mr. Lau”) resigned as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from
2 March 2020 as he wished to devote more time
to his other personal, business and honorary work
commitments.

Mr. Lau confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board
and that there was no matter relating to his resignation that
need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company or the Exchange.

Retirements of Directors

. Mr. Wong Chun (“Mr. Wong”) retired as a non-executive
Director with effect from 30 June 2020 as he needed to
devote more time in social works and his other personal
and business commitments. Upon his retirement,
Mr. Wong ceased to be the deputy chairman of the
Board and was appointed with the title of “Honorary
Vice Chairman”;
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. Dr. Hon. Lo Wai Kwok, SBS, MH, JP (“Dr. Lo”) retired
from the office of independent non-executive Director
with effect from 30 June 2020 as he needed to devote
more time to his other business commitments; and

. Mr. Lu Yongchao (“Mr. Lu”) retired as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2020
as he needed to devote more time to his other personal
business endeavours and pursuits.

Mr. Wong, Dr. Lo and Mr. Lu confirmed that they had no
disagreement with the Board and that there was no matter
relating to their retirement that need to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Company and the
Exchange.

Appointment of Director

. Dr. Feng Shen (“Dr. Feng”) has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from
3 March 2020 and is current a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination
committee, the executive committee and the strategy
and development committee.

Biographical details of Dr. Feng are set out in the section
headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT?” of this report.

BOARD COMPOSITION

On the date of this report, the Board comprises a total of seven
Directors, with four executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Li
Feng (Chairman), Mr. Yu Sanlong, Mr. Fan Xiaoling and Ms. Lee
Jui-lan, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Fong Chi Wai, Alex, Dr. Yan Ka Shing and Dr. Feng.

. ERBEEL fEAEE  KEPE - K
Fat(TEBLDHRAFTEREZHRRKR
AHRMEBMEEBLIFNTEE 8=
ToTFRAZTHBER K

. AokBEAE([afE ) BEKE ZRER
AH A EA BB RREB L IENITE
$ g—?—?i/\ﬂ +Eli$)<&

Fﬁﬁ'ﬁi EBEIRatAER  RERESSHE
D TMERBREREZEEATGART

Hx%& PP

ZEES

. BB ([SEL ) EBZERBIIEN
TEE B-ZT-_TF=A= Ei&ixﬁ(

HEM%$ T%ﬁ§AE FTMWEE
e RRELEE #ﬂﬁ%EAM&%&Eﬂ%&
%é‘lzé/\aﬁkfsw

BB A RSB
R -

EREREEAERD

RARERY  EFGE_MEREREK - &P
MERITES  EBELE(LE)  T=RRE
£ SN EERFRBE L R=RBIIFNT
B ALEER(L BRBELRSEL -

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (38R GR AT



Corporate Governance Report

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Chairman of the
Group is responsible for leading the Board to ensure that
it operates effectively and performs its duties, while Chief
Executive Officer of the Group is responsible for the overall
implementation of the Group’s business development and
general management. The Company currently has no Chief
Executive Officer. The daily operation and management of the
Company is monitored by the executive Directors as disclosed
in “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT?” of this report. The Board considers that the
Company has complied with Code Provision A.2.1.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The types of decisions taken out by the Board include matters
in relation to:

o corporate and capital structure;

J corporate strategy;

. significant policies affecting the Group as a whole;

. business plan, budgets and public announcements;

. delegation to the Chairman, and delegation to and by

Board committees;
. key financial matters;

o appointment, removal or reappointment of Board
members, senior management and auditors;

. remuneration of directors and senior management; and

. communication with key stakeholders, including
shareholders and regulatory bodies

The Board may delegate certain decision-making regarding
the daily operation and administration of the Company to the
senior management from time to time, the daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive
Directors under the direction and supervision of the executive
Directors.
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There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) among members of
the Board.

BOARD OPERATION

The Board meets regularly over the Company’s affairs and
operations. During Year 2020, one general meeting and ten
Board meetings were held for the purposes of, among others,
(i) reviewing and approving the internal results of the Company
for the six months ended 30 June 2020; (ii) reviewing and
approving the annual results of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019; (iii) discussing and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Group; and (iv) considering
and approving the remuneration packages of the respective
Directors.

The attendance record of each member of the Board at
the Board meetings and the annual general meeting of the
Company during Year 2020 is set out below:

EFEENEBZHEMETARER(EBME - X5
MEREMBBRSAAEAR)

e FEHEAREE  IWARRIERRE

:7f§'§¢r BIT—RBRAERTRE
C BE(ETERE) ()EH R ER R TS

22T -FFXXA=ZTHIEAEA ZHEIZELS ; (i)

ERRIEAREBE_SE—NF+A=+—8

Jtir,\ZiE%Zi (i) f]t:ﬁﬁ&?fbﬁ$&.2§km
REE RECR R (v) Z R RAESESHNE T

EFERKEBHFEESFEERARALQRZ
ERERBERG 2 LEFTIAT

T-TF

Attendance/Number of

meetings

HER EERE
Board 2020
meetings AGM
—EIERF
ExgglE RRBEFARE
Mr. Wang T4 10/10 1/1
Mr. Yu Fohat 9/10 01
Mr. Fan e tas 10/10 0/1
Ms. Lee 22 e 9/10 0/1
Mr. Wong (retired on 30 June 2020) BEE(RZZZZFA=1TRHRE) 6/8 0/
Mr. Lau (resigned on 2 March 2020) %Mﬂdmfyfyi A=—BHE&ET) 0/0 0/0
Dr. Lo (retired on 30 June 2020) EBE+(R-_E-ZTF,SA=1HEFE) 5/8 0/1
Dr. Fong FHiEL 9/10 0/1
Mr. Lu (retired on 30 June 2020) BAEE(RZZEZZEFA=THEE) 6/8 01
Dr. Yan EEE 10/10 11
Dr. Feng (appointed on 3 March 2020) BET(R=ZZ_ZF=A=REZT) 8/9 0/1
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Remuneration Committee was formed for, inter alia, the
following purposes:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on policies
and structure for remuneration of directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

(b) to determine the remuneration packages for executive
directors and senior management and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration
Committee was made up of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Yan (Chairman) and Dr. Feng, and one
executive Director, namely Mr. Wang.

During the Year 2020, two Remuneration Committee meetings
were held for the purpose of, among others, reviewing,
approving and recommending the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management to the Board for
consideration and approval. The attendance record of each
member of the Remuneration Committee during the Year 2020
is set out below:

N ,M\Aiﬁﬂ:

EEREREEAENE

FIEESEKY  HREBENTSIE

@ HEELSREBABZFMEERE
B RBLRZIEARMEERAENREFHIE
BRE% @Mﬁlﬁ FEFSFELEE

(b) ﬁ&%ﬂﬂi%&m?&%ﬁ/\az g7 BN 42
UHIFATEERBLREITES)
Z @Hﬁ§$‘\{’ﬁﬁk%

RAFRAY  FNZESHMBBLIFNTES
%%i(ﬁ/ﬁ)&%ﬁi& FHTEFTIREA
B o

R-F-TFE  BTMAFTFMEESA(EFE
BTN - HERENEERSMNEEABNFHNET
BYMESSRBFAREERIE R_T_FF
B FEZEeRKB 2 HFEREEIIIT

Attendance
HER
Dr. Yan e 2/2
Mr. Wang (appointment on 27 April 2020) If‘ﬁi( RZEZTFMA=+LHEZT) 2/2
Mr. Fan (ceased on 27 April 2020) BEERZZE-ZFHA=+LAEHE) 0/0
Ms. Lee (ceased on 27 April 2020) ?ﬁ:t(ﬁ’\f Z_TFENA=+HRHEHE) 0/0
Mr. Wong (ceased on 27 April 2020) E%E(EAf E_ZENA=—+HEREHE) 0/0
Mr. Lau (resigned on 2 March 2020) BIEE(R=ZTTF=A - HEHT) 0/0
Dr. Lo (ceased on 27 April 2020) BEET(R=ZZE=_TFNA=-++LRHHE) 0/0
Dr. Fong (ceased on 27 April 2020) FET(RZZZEFMNA =+ HHE) 0/0
Dr. Feng (appointed on 3 March 2020) BET(RZE_ZF=A=REZF) 2/2
Details regarding the Company’s emolument policy and long- AARIBEHEE R EHERHEUREFTESHE
term incentive schemes, as well as the basis of determining the = 7 ELEZIEH AR ELR o

directors’ emoluments are set out in this Annual Report.
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The Remuneration Committee will meet and review the
emolument policy and long-term incentive schemes as well
as the basis of determining the emolument payable to the
Company’s directors in Year 2021.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of
reference.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration
paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, BDO, in respect of
audit and non-audit services amounted to HK$1,400,000 and
nil respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of the Annual Report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Yan (Chairman), Dr. Fong and Dr. Feng.

During the Year 2020, the Audit Committee held seven
meetings and performed the following duties:

(1) reviewed and commented on the Company’s draft
annual, interim and quarterly financial announcements
Directors’ Report, Independent Auditors’ Report and
Financial Statements, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

()] reviewed and commented on the Group’s internal
controls;

()] met with the external auditors and participated in the
appointment, reappointment and assessment of the
performance of the external auditors; and

. reviewed the results of the external audits;

. reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of the
Group'’s risk control/mitigation tools including
the risk management systems, the internal audit
function relating to risk management and the
Group’s contingency plans;

. reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
systems after considering the report from the
Internal Auditors;

R-Z-—£F  FHERRRRIERRRNG
BB - RSB REN A AR EEHME
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M =853 ‘Aiﬁﬂ:
. reviewed the significant findings and . ﬁ%ﬂ‘W%ME%ZE?H&&I\%@%(EWE’]E
recommendations from the internal auditor RERMEZR  UEBSEERS
and external auditor, and monitored their W
implementations;
. reviewed and monitored the compliance by the . W TEEARNQREEBERBE
Company with all applicable laws, regulations, BER - BERKERRIEIN

standards and best practice guidelines. HBPER

(4)  The annual results presented herein have been reviewed (4) ABEZIZ 2 FEXBECHEREZESE
by the Audit Committee. B e

The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee R-ZE-TFE  BXELESKXKE 2 HFREE

during the Year 2020 is set out below: FnR -

Attendance

HER

Members of Audit Committee ERZEEERE
Dr. Yan et 77
Mr. Lau (resigned on 2 March 2020) %US‘EE(EA_E_ THE= A - HEHT) 0/0
Dr. Lo (ceased on 27 April 2020) EET(R_ZE_TFNA/=-+tHEE) 212
Dr. Fong HiEL 7/7
Mr. Lu (ceased on 27 April 2020) BEE(RZEEFNAZ+LREHTE) 2/2
Dr. Feng (appointed on 3 March 2020) BB T(RZZ_SF=A=AEZT) 6/6
NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS REE=S

The Board has established the Nomination Committee EFSREBELEEATRIZHRERIRELEZES -
pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code. The Nomination ~RHZE@KM NIREBEF 2R RIRAE
Committee adopted the following procedure and criteria for

nomination of Directors:

1 Procedure for Nomination of Directors 1 REEBZERF
1.1 When there is a vacancy in the Board, the Board 11 EBEFSHRERE  EFHT
evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge 15%%6)5)?%&15 MB R
and experience of the Board, and identifies Wi R ZE BB F A AR EK
any special requirements for the vacancy (Wﬁﬂ WBELIENITES - AIF
(e.g. independence status in the case of an BEMYATL) -

independent non-executive Director).
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1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (38R GR AT

Prepare a description of the role and capabilities
required for the particular vacancy.

Identify a list of candidates through personal
contacts/recommendations by Board members,
senior management, business partners or
investors.

Arrange interview(s) with each candidate for the
Board to evaluate whether the candidate meets
the established written criteria for nomination of
directors. One or more members of the Board will
attend the interview.

Conduct verification on information provided by
the candidate.

Convene both nomination committee meeting
and Board meeting to discuss and vote on which
candidate to nominate or appoint to the Board.

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.6
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2 Criteria for Nomination of Directors

2.1

2.2

Common Criteria for All Directors
(@) Character and integrity

(b) The willingness to assume broad fiduciary
responsibility

(¢ Present needs of the Board for particular
experience or expertise and whether the
candidate would satisfy those needs

(d) Relevant experience, including experience
at the strategy/policy setting level,
high level managerial experience in a
complex organisation, industry experience
and familiarity with the products and
processes used by the Company

(e) Significant business or public experience
relevant and beneficial to the Board and
the Company

U] Breadth of knowledge about issues
affecting the Company

(9) Ability to objectively analyse complex
business problems and exercise sound
business judgment

(h) Ability and willingness to contribute
special competencies to Board activities

(i) Fit with the Company’s culture
() Board diversity
Criteria for Non-Executive Directors

(@ Willingness and ability to make a
sufficient time commitment to the affairs
of the Company in order to effectively
perform the duties of a director, including
attendance at and active participation in
Board and committee meetings

(b) Accomplishments of the candidate in his
or her field

N 'M\Aiﬁﬂ:
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(c) Outstanding professional and personal
reputation

(d) The candidate’s ability to meet the
independence criteria for directors
established in the GEM Listing Rules

In structuring of the Board composition, by taking into account
the Group’s board diversity policy, board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All the ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

As at the date of the Annual Report, the nomination committee
was made up of one executive Director, namely Mr. Wang, and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Yan and
Dr. Feng.

During the Year 2020, two Nomination Committee meetings
were held for the purposes of, among others, (i) assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; (ii)
making recommendation to the Board for consideration the
re-election of all the retiring Directors as Directors at the 2020
AGM; and (iii) reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board. The attendance record of each member of the
nomination committee during the Year 2020 is set out below:

© EBEXREARELR

d REATESGEM EHRAIE
AESBUIEZREZRE

REBEESSZARE K RARBZESEX
BEZEBR  ARARENRZETHEEEZTENK
BZt  BRUERRER - Fik - Xtk
HEER Bk HELR B DMRRREF
B TARERERENBEREARRES ST
Wz e M ERMIE o

RERAM  REZEEH RN TEFTIRER
MERFTESTR L SISELHERK -

R-_TB_TEE BIOIMARELZESSHE 0§
f(EhBHE) () FHE B #ﬁtﬁ%%ﬂ’ﬂ 71 (i)
EfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁLE%%B’\_ T_% iﬂ&%ﬂiﬁ’\i
EREIRESSREEBUMEE R
ExeniE %ﬁﬁ%&iﬂﬁz CR-T_THEE B-E
HEREGEKEB ZHFREHINNT

Attendance
HER

Members of Nomination Committee REZESEHE
Mr. Wang FhE 2/2
Mr. Yu (ceased on 27 April 2020) F%E(F_Y_YEIEUEJ ++BHHE) 11
Mr. Lau (resigned on 2 March 2020) %U%E(E’\f T -TF= A HEHT) 0/0
Dr. Lo (ceased on 27 April 2020) ERT(RZETFNA=++tHHE) 11
Mr. Lu (ceased on 27 April 2020) B 54 (7 \_z_zimﬁ ++RBEE) 11
Dr. Fong (ceased on 27 April 2020) FBEET(RZBE_ZFNOA =+ HEHE) 11
Dr. Yan o 2/2
Dr. Feng (appointed on 3 March 2020) BELT(RZE_TF=A=HEZF) 1/1
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company would provide to each newly appointed director
or alternative director an induction package covering the
summary of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of a
Hong Kong listed company, the Group’s businesses and the
statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company
as well as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure
that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Company has provided information related to the changes
in the GEM Listing Rules to the directors to update and refresh
the directors’ knowledge on the latest developments to the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company will continuously update
the directors on the latest developments to the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance the directors’ awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to directors or management of the Company. Such
questions, requests and comments can be addressed to Mr.
Wang Li Feng by email to lifengwang@188.com or Mr. Patrick
Chang at patrick@glorymarkhightech.com.hk.
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(patrick@glorymarkhightech.com.hk) °
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend
payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant
laws, rules and regulations and subject to the Bye-laws of the
Company.

The dividends may be paid up in the form of the Company’s
shares in addition to cash, by the distribution of specific assets
of any kind or by distribution of any form. Subject to compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and the Bye-laws of the
Company, in deciding whether to propose any dividend payout,
the Board will take into account, among other things, the
financial results, the earnings, losses and distributable reserves,
the operations and liquidity requirements, the debt ratio and
possible effects on the credit lines, and the current and future
development plans of the Company.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Directors are aware of the requirements under the
applicable regulations, Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Hong Kong Listing Rules for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. All the inside
information identified by the Directors shall be published
and disclosed to the public in a timely manner through the
Company’s publications and communications, unless the
information falls within safe harbours as prescribed in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year 2020 and up to the date of this report, there
has not been any change in the Company’s Bye-laws. The
Company’s Bye-laws are available on the websites of the
Company (www.glorymark.com.tw) and the Exchange (www.
hkexnews.hk).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Man Yun Wah has been nominated by In.Corp Corporate
Services (HK) Limited (formerly known as RHT Corporate
Advisory (HK) Limited) to act as the company secretary of the
Company since 10 January 2019, who has complied with the
requirements of Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules. He has
been contacting with Mr. Wang Li Feng and Mr. Patrick Chang
directly in respect of company secretarial matters.
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All the Directors have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary on corporate governance and Board
practice and matters.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Group has an Internal Audit Department which reports
directly to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department
provides the Audit Committee and the Board with useful
information and recommendations on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control systems. Internal Controls Review
Reports are submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board
for review with recommendations adopted to further enhance
the effectiveness of the internal controls. The Internal Audit
Department also assists the Audit Committee in monitoring
the implementations of the previously identified findings and
reports the status of remediation to the Audit Committee. The
Internal Audit Department generally reviews and assesses
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems by
adopting a risk-based audit approach based on the Internal
Control — 2013 Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(“COS0O”).
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25% Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
E|5E 1 +852 2218 8288 EBTHER11158
&K : +852 2815 2239 K%z 2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLORY MARK HI-TECH
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda

with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to
155, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Revenue recognition on contract work of comprehensive
architectural services

We identified the revenue recognition on contract work of
comprehensive architectural services as a key audit matter due
to the significant judgement and estimate used by management
to determine the total cost to complete and the contract costs
incurred for work performed to date.

The Group earned revenue from its provision of comprehensive
architectural services amounted to HK$31,141,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2020. The Group recognises service
revenue by reference to the stage of completion of the design
activities at the end of the reporting period, measured based on
the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to
date relative to the estimated total contract costs. Accordingly,
revenue recognition on these service contracts involves a
significant degree of management judgement in the estimation
of the total contract costs and stage of completion of each
contract.

Refer to Notes 3(c), 4(b) and 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on contract
work of comprehensive architectural services included:

. Understanding and evaluating management’s process
relating to the estimation of total contract costs,
determination of the stage of completion and recording
of contract costs;

. Comparing contract sum and budgeted contract costs
to respective signed contracts and approved budgets
on a sample basis;

Independent Auditor’s Report
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. Discussing with the management and testing the
supporting evidences to evaluate the reasonableness of
management’s estimation of the total contract costs and
contract costs incurred for work performed to date on a
sample basis; and

° Assessing reliability of contract budgets by comparing
actual contract costs against budgeted costs of
completed projects.

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant e
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use o
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content e
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among  EMEIEIN - AIZEEITEBEZZ S ERNEZHN
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 1 ZI85E - BETH R EABZERER - BEA
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies  fTHEREIZBIZH %518 A 2B ESI2 B (T n] 82 A REE ©

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that  ZAZSEIITIRAIEZZ EEL R » HPERTEF
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding &8 @B EABREEES K - WHRKEER
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships  RIREW A IER A ERITE L TR ERBENRE
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on  =HE - A MBI &G (EA) -

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wendy W.Y. Fong

Practising Certificate Number: P06821

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEEkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—BC-ERF “E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Ktat FAET FET
Revenue WA 5 292,748 347,973
Cost of sales and services rendered tHE MR ARG A A (246,095) (288,541)
Gross profit E7 46,653 59,432
Other income H AN 8,442 3,170
Other gains and losses HAabUREs Ak (3,165) (1,167)
Change in fair value of investment EYE N T EE ) 14
properties (500) (230)
Share of profit of joint ventures FE(EEEBDERA 1,325 1,135
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBEY (7,280) (8,941)
Administrative expenses THAX (47,796) (37,853)
(Loss)/profit before taxation A AT (EE) % 9 (2,321) 15,546
Income tax expense R 8 (2,801) (3,676)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EER) EF (5,122) 11,870
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEukE
Items that may be reclassified HZ A E 7 2 18~
subsequently to profit or loss: IgH :
Exchange differences arising on BMEGINETSTEE 2 IE K
translation of foreign operations =XE 2,460 (758)
Share of other comprehensive income [E{EEADE 2 HMETE
of joint ventures Wz 101 —
2,561 (758)
Total comprehensive income for the FRZEWREEE
year (2,561) 11,112
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable ITATREEERN(ER),
to: SR -
Owners of the Company RARHEB A (4,576) 12,255
Non-controlling interests PEaliig e (546) (385)
(5,122) 11,870
Total comprehensive income AR ALTEREFAZERKELE
for the year attributable to: %8
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ =N (2,015) 11,497
Non-controlling interests IR R (546) (385)
(2,561) 11,112
(Re-presented)
(&31))
(Loss)/earnings per share gk (ER) &F HK(0.67) cents HK1.89 cents
Basic and diluted BERR#E 11 (0.67) &1l 1.897%5 11l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R R

As at 31 December 2020 R —ZE-ZEF+-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt FAETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB MR 12 50,417 47,712
Right-of-use assets EREEE 13 8,828 8,014
Investment properties wEME 14 14,250 14,750
Interests in joint ventures NEEBLENRER 15 5,189 3,763
Deposits paid BffiEE 17 — 949
78,684 75,188
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 78 18 50,589 35,345
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWEER 19 69,284 64,791
Contract assets EHEE 20 3,052 1,250
Amount due from a joint venture Bl —MEA BB ERIE 21 10 -
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBNIRS 22 56,403 79,871
179,338 181,257
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 258,022 256,445
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables, other payables and B o RENRR - EMEMERR KR
accruals TEIRE A 23 78,761 81,936
Contract liabilities S48 E 24 1,556 5,253
Lease liabilities HESE 13 309 413
Tax liabilities HIEEE 43,299 38,770
123,925 126,372
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 55,413 54,885
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEABERRBAE
LIABILITIES 134,097 130,073

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 43§ 2020 51



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

As at 31 December 2020 R —ZE-ZEF+ - A=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBER
Lease liabilities HERE 13 908 401
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE 124,833 126,773
NET ASSETS BEEFE 133,189 129,672
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R R EE
Share capital B 25 7,040 6,400
Reserves & 126,640 123,217
Equity attributable to owners of the ZAN/NEIE 2= DN A e 3y
Company 133,680 129,617
Non-controlling interests Eisnliyr ey (491) 55
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE 133,189 129,672

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 155 were  £50&F 1558 V&8RN —_E - —F = A
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on —+F BEEE =it i LIS WHILTES

25 March 2021 and are signed on behalf by: REZ=Z:
Wang Li Feng Fan Xiaoling
14 BhE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF

52 GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ﬁé#&é%iﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —ZT - E4+—-HA=+—H I FE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

VNAETE L PN
Non-
Share Share Merger Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
RE  ROEE AOHRE ERRE  REEF Nt EERER @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET AT FET FET
(Note 25) (Note j) (Note i)
(Hrzt25) (Brati)  (Watii)
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NE
—A—H 6,400 — 680 10,751 102,209 120,040 440 120,480
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF/(BE) - - - - 12,255 12,255 (385) 11,870
Other comprehensive income  E A2 E4E — — — (758) — (758) — (758)
Total comprehensive income N2 EYEEE
for the year - - - (758) 12,255 11,497 (385) 11,112
Dividends (Note 10) &2 (Ft3E10) - - - - (1,920) (1,920) = (1,920)
At 31 December 2019 —T-NEF
-I-— == 6,400 - 680 9,993 112,544 129,617 55 129,672
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (4,576) (4,576) (546) (5,122)
Other comprehensive income  E 1 2 E Mz - - - 2,561 - 2,561 = 2,561
Total comprehensive income 2 E Uz £ - - - 2,561 (4,576) (2,015) (546) (2,561)
Issue of new shares (Note j) 347D (A13t1) 640 5,438 - - - 6,078 — 6,078
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TE
+-A=+—-H 7,040 5,438 680 12,554 107,968 133,680 (491) 133,189
Notes: Hiat

i. On 3 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a

placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent placed 64,000,000

placing shares at the placing price of a HK$0.1 per placing share to certain

independent placees. The net proceeds from the subscription is net of

related issued costs and expenses (Note 25).

ii. The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between

the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and

the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued for the

acquisition under the group reorganisation in 2001.

RZZBZZTFRA=H AR A ERE KRBT RS D

o Bt REREREEES
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T2 L ABL 564,000,000/ ER SR 15  RIBATIS IR
TFRC IR ETRA R (FIRE25)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E_TF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES MR
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiE (E518),m A (2,321) 15,546
Adjustments for: AT ZIBEEL A
Change in fair value of investment WEMFE N THEZE)
properties 500 230
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BB NMRETE
equipment 5,839 6,642
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 1,517 394
Gain on effect of lease modification T EE BRI (9) -
Impairment loss on club debenture EMESREBE = 788
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaEMNERX 49 A
Interest income on bank deposits RITFRFEUA (659) (385)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME  MERREEE
plant and equipment (Yzs) 240 (338)
Provision of allowance for credit = EEERE
losses 1,866 2,123
Provision of allowance for inventories ¥ & #{& (2,614) 1,138
Reversal of other payables and HihFEMERFA N TFAIR E M
accrual (2,688) —
Share of profit of joint ventures JEIR A B ERT (1,325) (1,139)
Operating cash flows before EEESEYRI K ERERE
movements in working capital 395 25,007
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGGM),w (12,630) 7,447
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other & 5 K H fih lE I BR X
receivables (3, @ (6,359) 13,611
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets & #1472 (3 hN) F 4> (1,802) 4,380
Decrease in trade payables, other B 5RN - IR R TER
payables and accruals BRR (487) (21,211)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHBaERD (3,697) (7,517)
Cash (used in)/generated from KE (TR /F3Re
operations (24,580) 21,717
Income taxes refunded/(paid) 2R (B FER 1,728 (1,905)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED  && %% (FTH) FSHELFHE
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (22,852) 19,812
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—s-®E T NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEH
Purchase of property, plant and BEME - WE KR
equipment (5,067) (3,484)
Advance to a joint venture m—REaBEPERK (10) —
Interest received BIF S 659 385
Proceeds from disposal of club HEZMEFKA
debenture - 372
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  MENRRERERE
plant and equipment - 367
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBITAREFE
ACTIVITIES (4,418) (2,360)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Note 35) A K75 (KY=ES5)
Net proceeds from issue of shares BIIRDFTE I8 FEE 6,078 -
Repayment of principal portion of lease FAEEEAS I ER
liabilities (1,288) (33)
Interest paid for leases BEREERE (49) (4)
Dividends paid BT E = (1,920)
Repayment of amounts due to directors (E3&fEfEEZIA = (1,473)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ BMEEKHME (A RS FHE
(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 4,741 (3,430)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReRZERRELER (RD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BN (22,529) 14,022
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT R—A—HzBE&RZERES
1 JANUARY IHE 79,871 65,087
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE [EXR##Es 5%
RATE CHANGES (939) 762
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RtT-A=t+—HZzHERkE
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by REREEE - LARITEH K
bank balances and cash HERR 56,403 79,871
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
shares of the Company were listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 4 January 2002.

The addresses of the registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and the principal place of business in
Hong Kong is at Room 1033, 10/F, Central Building, 1-3
Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of connectivity products mainly for
computers and peripheral products, and provision of
comprehensive architectural services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). The functional currency of
the Company is United States dollars (“USD”). As the
Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) consider that it is appropriate
to present the consolidated financial statements in HKS$.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for the current year

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of new or amended HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

. Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a
Business

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition
of Material

° Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS
9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
introduce an optional concentration test that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The election
to apply the concentration test is made for each
transaction. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities and assets is determined not
to be a business. If the concentration test is failed, the
acquired set of activities and assets is further assessed
based on the elements of a business.

The adoption of this amended HKFRSs did not have
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material” aligning the definition across all HKFRSs
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into
the definition.

The adoption of this amended HKFRSs did not have
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

58

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the period
before the replacement of an existing interest rate
benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”).
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which
enable hedge accounting to continue during the period
of uncertainty before the introduction of the alternative
RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by
these uncertainties.

The adoption of this amended HKFRSs did not have

significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I IRAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 39,

HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements to

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause®

Proceeds before Intended Use®

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract®

Insurance Contracts®

Reference to the Conceptual Framework*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions'

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 22

HKFRSs 2018-2020
U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022
8 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023
© The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on
or after a date to be determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS AT ERMEREER ([ FBK
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HREEA ) REBYBRELEAET A
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (&)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not CHEAEERERNTITEEMBRESE
yet effective (Continued) AR BB EREEET R
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities EARASHENFIFE (TR EBEHNR
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 RIIERE D E |IREBZREES(2020) 5% B
(2020), Presentation of Financial Statements - BHRRNEIN —ERAHESRERER
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that BRRHWERERN D HE |
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
The amendments clarify that the classification of ZEERTMEA > BEESBRREBHIER
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights ) HENREARTEAER - WETH -
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period, DT ERAEERReTFEFATESE
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations BENEMNNTERTE  UTHREBERERS
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer IR THE - AIEANERRE - 251&
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in STBIAIEE IWESR - UBREERE
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of BIRE  RETE - HihEERISEE
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a TEHETT -
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.
HK Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence BEBREES52020) 5 A= -ZF )\ A
of the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. EHMB A ETHERSB1IRUSEIA) MIEDR
The revision to HK Interpretation 5 (2020) updates BE] - KIEFIEBREFES(2020)55F#H T
the wordings in the interpretation to align with the ZEPOER - NHEBBERIEIR
Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion (BETAR)—%  BERTESS - TITE
and do not change the existing requirements. BHERITHE ©
The Group does not expect the adoption of these AEBBAERAZSBIIT2HAEE 2
amendments will have significant impact on the Group’s HE NGRS E AT E o
result and financial position.
Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended EHRSHERNS16E(BIR)1EREAR
Use B FTBRRIE |
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of ZREEFTRIERYE BERZEER K
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds AAEHKEETRFEELEEZEREEBRT
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to 7 238 7 2\ T 55 B b B R A O B EE A Y TE
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable BHFTERIE - Hx - HEZZFHEE AT
of operating in the manner intended by management. BHRIEMEEZERBE KRR EZRF
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the TER
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.
The Group does not expect the adoption of these AREBBEAEMNZEBIITEHAER 2
amendments will have significant impact on the Group’s HEENIEAR A EREATE -
result and financial position.

60 GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED EE&# (R B8R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The Group does not expect the adoption of these
amendments will have significant impact on the Group’s
result and financial position.

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts and supersedes HKFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts. The standard outlines a ‘General
Model’, which is modified for insurance contracts with
direct participation features, described as the ‘Variable
Fee Approach’. The General Model is simplified if certain
criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining
coverage using the Premium Allocation Approach.

The Group does not expect the adoption of these
amendments will have significant impact on the Group’s
result and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS AT ERMEREER ([ FBK
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HREEA ) REBYBRELEAET A
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (&)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not CHEMAEERERNTITEEMBHRESE
yet effective (Continued) AR EBMEREEIMET AR (&)
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual EBI M AR EIGE (ST A) [ Y=
Framework R
The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers SR T B AN B RELER|EI5E
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial FERELET] T — \FUBREHE
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010. SIERMIFE - —SFEHMAORK - Z2F
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement (BETIER B TSR E R B35 h 18R — I8
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an € BB R EI7TREBE AL
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the R5mMs WEAHEREBSeH%R|E37
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of REETRWEAHESABEEGHMFE
past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of REE - HRNEB (BRMEREZRER
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)- Bg)-REF21HHANEBE AN
Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event that WEFEREE (BB ERERELZS
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by @) -REFFUBEFERINEFREEL
the acquisition date. The amendments also add an NETSHEEERKERREE - %%
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise BETIMERN—IERAERE - BIKE T2
contingent assets acquired in a business combination. ERIEESE P IEER A EE -
The Group does not expect the adoption of these AEBBRAZSEBIITEHAER 2
amendments will have significant impact on the Group’s HEENRIBEIRRERE R E -
result and financial position.
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or BRI RELZENEI0EREASER
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its $E28F (BT REEHEEHENTRS
Associate or Joint Venture ErECEANEEHERTE]
The amendments clarify with situations where there is a ZEEFIEAKREEEHEBRENFHEE
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and TEZEHEIEABENER - FHEEK
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with FAEZAEARNBENRE ECEET
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using R AELAHEITNBESESHNE QR
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from B 128 Il 4 T 2= A D (R U s sk S TR E DA JE
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain IS EEEZBME NS B ERNRE
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to mAREEREPER - R - &EMA
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that WEAR(ERABMEARNEELE)N
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses REB LA FEENTEME £/ EM
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in WSk BT - (ELASERIB IR B E N E &
any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or DR BELENER BRIEBETER
a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (Continued)

The Group does not anticipate that the application
of this amendments in the future will have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical
expedient to lessees in accounting for rent concessions
arising as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, by
including an additional practical expedient in HKFRS
16 that permits entities to elect not to account for rent
concessions as modifications. The practical expedient
applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of Covid-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following criteria are satisfied:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

(b) the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may
be accounted for in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not need to
assess whether the rent concession meets the definition
of lease modification. Lessees shall apply other
requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the rent
concession.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS AT ERMEREER ([ FBK
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HREEA ) REBYBRELEAET A
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (&)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not CHEMAEERERNTITEEMBHRESE

yet effective (Continued) AR EBMEREEIMET AR (&)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent ERMBREERFE165 (BTA)HE

Concessions (Continued) Covid-19EEMHEEE (&)

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications W HeEBRIIEREBITALR - B8

would have resulted in the Group remeasuring the AEEGAKETRREEENGTEHEER

lease liability to reflect the revised consideration using BEARMGETTRE -  MEEEEEHH

a revised discount rate, with the effect of the change TEBIRIEEREEE - BIBERA T

in the lease liability recorded against the right-of-use BEAZE  AEBETETEEFIMEE

asset. By applying the practical expedient, the Group MEEEBEEHNFECHREHSERN
is not required to determine a revised discount rate and AR AR BRI B R R R AR -

the effect of the change in the lease liability is reflected

in profit or loss in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

The Group does not expect the adoption of these AEBTBFRAZSEBIITEHAER 2

amendments will have significant impact on the Group’s HEE NG ER BN L o

result and financial position.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 CE-N\FE_ZE_ESFERBUKREE

AlNEERE

The annual improvements amends a number of FENBCEL ZIHEA#EIT TIBE] - B :

standards, including:

. HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong . FRP B REERNE 1R EIRERSR
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit BV BRELER | AFEAES
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of B 75 o5 #E RI 55 155 55 D16(a) R A9 FY
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation BARBESARBEZSBBEMK
differences using the amounts reported by its WEEBMNBE - FRSARIFRE
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to MRt E R ERZ5E -
HKFRSs.

. HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify . BBV BHREEREIR ISR T
the fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in B BBREEMGHRELERFIHE
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing £ B3.3.6E%[ 10% JBIE Fr 23 M
whether to derecognise a financial liability, B UTEREKRILEZSRE
explaining that only fees paid or received B VHREBEEEREERAZEE
between the entity and the lender, including fees N WK ER  BEEEKER
paid or received by either the entity or the lender ARKEM T BWENER -
on other’s behalf are included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
(Continued)

o HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.

o HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset
using a present value technique.

The Group does not anticipate that the application of
this standards in the future will have significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform
(the “Reform”). The amendments complement those
issued in November 2019 and relate to (a) changes to
contractual cash flows in which an entity will not have to
derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial
instruments for changes required by the Reform, but
will instead update the effective interest rate to reflect
the change to the alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge
accounting in which an entity will not have to discontinue
its hedge accounting solely because it makes changes
required by the Reform, if the hedge meets other hedge
accounting criteria; and (c) disclosures in which an
entity will be required to disclose information about new
risks arising from the Reform and how it manages the
transition to alternative benchmark rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS R BB REER ([ FBMBE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEL ) REBVBHREERETE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) ()

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not EEGENRERNFTTEEMBRESE
yet effective (Continued) AR EBMEREEIMET AR (5)
Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, EBEERE39 FRMBREER
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark F45 BEEUMBRELERNSETR - B
Reform - Phase 2 (Continued) BHMELERFNER BB R EERE16
SRUBRTA) FIREERE —£25 |(4)
The Group does not anticipate that the application AREBEBFBEERZEBIIATSHES
of this amendments in the future will have significant IR EREATE -
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEESHEX
The consolidated financial statements have been RAEMBMERDBERE S ASREM
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by ZEBMIEHREERHRE o I £E
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial BF R B IREE S T GEM & %5 F i #8 )
statements include applicable disclosures required by (TGEM EmRAI) RBEBRHEHIFRE 2
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of HEWEE -
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been BAN T A E 2 SETGR T - R E
prepared on the historical cost basis except for BHREDEREER AR - MITEMSE
investment properties that are measured at fair values at Al S Eet R A ERE ©
the end of each accounting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the [ & RN — RRAR I BB /E R 8 & M AR 75 B
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. MHREBZz AT ESE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell ANFEEERSTEABBESEXSHRHMm
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly GREE 7B EEERAWE S EER
transaction between market participants at the SR MEER  TEEBRAEEE
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is AISEFI B S —HERTEE TS - £
directly observable or estimated using another valuation FTEESBENATER  AEESEE
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a RitEHEEMEREE AEENBET
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics ERNSEENEENREEIFHY - £t E
of the asset or liability if market participants would take SEMEHREAT A ERKIEEER
those characteristics into account when pricing the MEeEHNATLELIRILEEET  EES
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value BTSSR F25R AR BERZ T
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these EEANZUBRODBERZNRRS - £F
consolidated financial statements is determined on such B SRS ERF16RBEMAER SN
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions MENFEFEURBINIEAFENG
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based = PlInEB ST ER|E25: 5 R A] 217
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope FEND B YT ERFEI6EE B ERFE
of HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some FEE - BINTELRR o
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.

66 GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED EE&# (R B8R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the

Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where

the Company:
o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable

returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of joint
venture used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the joint venture. Changes in net assets of
the joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % 3% 2020

REELFENER(®)

BERRZFEURBERAEN
NHEmEFHER FARTHRE M
HBERA - AR ERGHEZRED
KU mR IR EARE B
R EBERR T EHEAFABOR
—EBRERRER - REESE R
—AAELENRENZHRAA
KRB MBI BRERAER - LR
ERARAERAREEE—HA
BEXBa L EMEENRE - 68
CREEFEZYH(BakEMEE
WasbRIMN LTI - BRIEZFE B
EYAREMFHEEEER LRE
B EAKEEE—HAELEN
BEBAASENZEBERFENE
@ (BRE(EE DAXRASERZE
BREOREFE—HomIAR
R > AIAKE T BRAER
HRE—TER EEAKECEE
EERIEEFEEFIRRZEED
EXNFIR - T EHREINERE o

R-—BRELENREBREHR
RABEREZ BB RAERE
AfR - BER—RaELENIR
B RERABBAEEEEZ
BREHSAHREERBBENRYF
BEFENTOH I BRASEHE - I
SFARERNREE - RIRERWE
HE > A"EEEEAUHIEERE
BN R FEFEEBREKANNE
Ay EEHMEERNKRERA

69



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

3.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in a joint venture may
be impaired. When any objective evidence exists,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the joint venture are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to a contract are accounted for and presented on
a net basis.
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(c)

(d)

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Leases

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist
for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the Group applies the
revaluation model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the
cost model, the Group measures the right-to-
use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises it judgement and determines that it is a
separate class of asset apart from the leasehold
land and buildings which is held for own use. As
a result, the right-of-use asset arising from the
properties under tenancy agreements are carried
at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

3. BEESHEER®)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Leases (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable:
(ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
(iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g.,
a change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchanges rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit plan, state-
managed retirement benefit scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRSs requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit
before taxation” because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interest in a
joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments
and interest are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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3.

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they are relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including
buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods, or for administrative purposes are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U}

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group’s property interests held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes are classified and
accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible to
determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Intangible asset with indefinite useful life
is tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that it may be
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U

(m)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.
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3.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit- impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECL”) on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables,
bank balances and cash and contract assets).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12 months ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables and contract assets. The ECL
on these assets are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12 months ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread and the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;
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3.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit- impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(@)

()

(d)

significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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3.

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.

3.

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A

BEESHEER®)

(n)

SMIA®E)

THEEE)

(iv)

v)

WEHER

ERERBRE T BAR
ERBRER N BEERA A
W m IR (Pl F 5 275
BAEAWERF  LMHS
BHRWER - AZEFLRE
BHRRIAMNER - ARF
HERE)  AEEEMHES
BREE - NEEZERARE
Rig - MAREBEAEEA K
REFHEMENEREE
AN BES)  MEHBARE
IFFEREIR - (ERE R YK
KB HER

I BERe G B RAER

BHEEEENTERED
Bx  ZHBR(NENE
B 1RIR ) B 498 [ & K
B BB RENEIEN
AP {E T E R E L BB IZ AR
HERHERE - BHEES
BR et RERQERBER N
RESNEE - JORIBINIE AR R R
#IR\BR T HEE -

—kmE  EHESEEER
RESVENAEENRA
BHREREANKEEY
WERHWREREZHEHNE
B RUSERSETNE
BRFIHBEIR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where evidence at
the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments
(i.e. the Group’s trade and other
receivables and contract assets
are each assessed as a separate

group);
o Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of

debtors; and

. External credit ratings where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents
of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

3. BEESTBEK®E)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

3.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at amortised cost including trade and other
payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(0) Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart
from those involving estimations (see below),
that the directors of the Company have made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from
investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on
changes in fair value of investment properties as
the Group is not subject to any income taxes in
relation to the fair value changes of investment
properties.

4. EREFHHERMGEHTIEEM ZETER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
within the next financial year.

Revenue recognition on contract work

The management estimates the amount of
foreseeable losses or attributable profits of
comprehensive architectural design work based
on the latest available budgets of the contracts
prepared by project team with reference to
the overall performance of each contract work
and the management’s best estimates and
judgements.

Due to the contracting nature of the business,
revenue recognition involves a significant
degree of judgement. Notwithstanding that the
management reviews and revises the estimates
of contract costs for the contract as the contract
progresses, the actual outcome of the contract
in terms of its total costs may be higher or lower
than the estimates and this will affect the revenue
and profit recognised.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECL for the trade receivables and contract
assets. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables and contract assets
with significant balances and credit impaired are
assessed for ECL individually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the Group’s
trade receivables, contract assets and the ECL
assessment are disclosed in Notes 19, 20 and
31(b)(ii) respectively.

Fair value of investment properties

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties
were carried at aggregate fair value of
HK$14,250,000 (2019: HK$14,750,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
The fair value was based on valuations on these
properties conducted by independent qualified
valuers using property valuation techniques which
involve certain assumptions of market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair
values of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain
or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Further details of the fair value measurement of
the Group's investment properties are set out in
Note 14.
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R ()

(b)

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A

T TP EEE 2 EERR(E)

ESEKRARENEEAREE
IR (%)

BHREEERRERT I XAGE
BT E BRAASEESRUKR
R ANBEERBREEBRNE
MERDRIBRERMETI 20K
31(b)(ii) °

KREWHZ A FE

RZZE-_ZTF+_A=+—8 4%
B TR A F{EHEEE14,250,000
BIL(ZZF—L%F : 14,750,000/
T RERE T AR HRERRTIER © 3%
DNEETIABIL A BB GERMER
BRETHABERZWEMGBELE
HZEMEETHHEAREE - Z
ERJFER 2B XA FNES S
BRASBEREME 2 A EEE
) URHEGEEREAMEE
WERANFTEH 2 Wk BB e
EHAEERE - BEASEKREY
EZ2RFEFEZE—THBEHR
PzE14 -



REVENUE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I IRAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020

L ON

()  BHEEFEARA

BE-ZE_EFf+-A=+—HI1

FE
Contracts of
Sales of comprehensive
connectivity architectural
products services Total
HE 2EEE
ERER BREEH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Geographical markets WEHE
Korea A 72,354 - 72,354
The PRC HE 10,189 31,141 41,330
Japan HAR 66,537 - 66,537
The United States of America (‘USA”) ZEFEA REI([EH]) 77,806 - 77,806
Taiwan =y 19,343 — 19,343
Others Hit 15,378 — 15,378
Total wet 261,607 31,141 292,748
Types of customers EEER
Original equipment manufacturer RRBEER
(“OEM”) customers ([OEM )& E 153,840 - 153,840
Retail distributors TEHHA 107,767 - 107,767
Contractors A - 31,141 31,141
Total M=t 261,607 31,141 292,748
Timing of revenue recognition W AR B A
At a point in time AR 2h 261,607 - 261,607
Over time s B — 31,141 31,141
Total st 261,607 31,141 292,748
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

5.

96

REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

WA (&)

(i) BHEEFEARA (8)

BE-E—h&E+=-A=+—HI1

FE
Contracts of
Sales of comprehensive
connectivity architectural
products services Total
HE ZHEE
ERER REESH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Geographical markets HEMS
Korea A 94,425 - 94,425
The PRC ] 10,058 67,078 77,136
Japan HAR 68,709 - 68,709
USA EH 71,366 - 71,366
Taiwan =y 24,107 - 24,107
Others Hith 12,230 - 12,230
Total 4=t 280,895 67,078 347,973
Types of customers EFER
OEM customers OEMEE 183,933 - 183,933
Retail distributors TENHE 96,962 - 96,962
Contractors ] - 67,078 67,078
Total st 280,895 67,078 347,973
Timing of revenue recognition W\ RS A
At a point in time R R 2h 280,895 - 280,895
Over time i - 67,078 67,078
Total =t 280,895 67,078 347,973
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &; %=

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

@

®)

Sales of connectivity products

For trading of connectivity products,
the Group sells connectivity products to
OEM customers and retail distributors.
Revenue is recognised when control of
the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been delivered to the specific
location and confirmed by the customers.

Contracts of comprehensive architectural
services

The Group provides comprehensive
architectural services to independent
contractors. Revenue from such services
are recognised when a performance
obligation is satisfied over time as the
Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed
to date. Revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation using input
method.

The Group’s service contracts include
payment schedules which require stage
payments over the design period once
certain specified milestones are reached.
The Group requires certain customers
to provide upfront deposits range from
10% to 30% of total contract sum, when
the Group receives a deposit before
comprehensive architectural service
commences, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit received.

5.

nv_\éﬂjﬁiﬁ% Mq-EI
—E-FF+A=+—HLEFE

WA ()
(i) BFEXREHIEME
@  HEERER
REBEEREMME @ A%
B OEMEF T E D HE
HERREM - WARER
BoniE bR - &M
AT E 45 T M B M R P
BB o
b)) EEHZEREEH

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % 3% 2020

REBERBIANERES
ERE R - ZFRBFEA
A B #) & (T B B ) 22 A B e
R RAR/AEERENL
BELHAKEAHEMORAR
MEE  MAKEHZSE
TR B 40 BV 5 SR AT SR )
HITHRER - WATHERK
NESRE2EKRBRED
BIHERRER FRRER

AEBH R A OEE MK
RREX  HERKRTHRE
A T #5 E BAR AR B X A
BMEMNR - REBEERKET
EFENBANSEIONE
30% ML - EAKER
2 2 S AR R 4 A WU
T RMgRenRrKES
BHWAE HEERBTEH
ROBABBE BIZEE
B

97



98

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

5.

REVENUE (Continued) 5.

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

(b) Contracts of comprehensive architectural
services (Continued)

A contract asset, net of contract
liability related to the same contract,
is recognised over the period in which
the comprehensive architectural
services are performed representing the
Group’s right to consideration for the
services performed because the rights
are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in achieving specified
milestones. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional upon
meeting the billing milestones.

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Contracts of comprehensive architectural
services are typically completed within one year.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers
(“CODM?), for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided.

Segment information reported internally for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment is
analysed based on the class of customers which is the
same as information reported to the CODM:

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. OEM customers
2. Retail distributors
3. Provision of comprehensive architectural services

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving
at the reportable segments of the Group.

Segment results represent the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of administrative expenses,
selling and distribution expenses, share of profit of joint
ventures, other income, other gains and losses and
change in fair value of investment properties. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

The Group's segment assets exclude bank balance and
cash, other receivables, investment properties, interests
in joint ventures and deposits paid (non-current assets).

The Group’s segment liabilities exclude other payables
and accruals and tax liabilities.
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. THEER ()
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue INTAAEBIZZ®RAEE D 2 RAFE
and results from continuing operations by reportable IR AR EE DT -
segments:
2020 2019
-E-EE Z3-nE
Provision of Provision of
comprehensive comprehensive
OEM Retail architectural OEM Retal architectural
customers  distributors services Total customers  distributors services Total
g8 Rit2E 25 2

OEMZF yir 1] RERY i OEMEP y ol Bk ot
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
77 7 T T TAT TAT TAT TAT

SEGMENT REVENUE AEHA
~ External sales - HiMER 153,840 107,767 i 20748 183933 96,962 67078 347,973
SEGMENT PROFIT por byl 20,045 19,085 1,523 46,653 21,233 15,648 16,951 50432
Unallocated expenses AAERR (95,076) (46,794
Other income A 8,442 3170
Other gains and losses Efbhaiex (3,165) (1,167)
Change in fair value of investment ~ EMERATE
properties 58 (500) (230)
Share of profit of oint ventures ~~ E[FAERER
7l 1,325 1,135

(Loss)proft before taxation BiEI(58R)/

s 321 16,546
Other segment information: HAEER -
Depreciation included in costof B HETEHER
goods sold KT
— Right-of-use assets - PHELE (130) 87) - (217 213) (146) — (359)
— Property, plant and equipment - 1%+ HiER
R (3,104) (2,056) - (5,160) (3490 (2,39 - (5,888)

Reversal/(provision) of allowance 2 5%/
oninventories (B8)
1572 1,042 A 2614 679 1463 - (1139
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R I IRAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZSEER®
2020 2019
i B0k
Provision of Provision of
comprehensive comprehensive
OEM Retail architectural OEM Retail architectural
customers  distributors  Sub-total services Total  customers distributors  Sub-total services Total
] ]
0EMEE SEMHE Nt BERE i OEMEF ZEREE Nt BERE i
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$000  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSU0O  HKSUOOD HKSO000  HKS000
fér  FEr  FEr Fér AL FEr FEr TEn AT AT
SEGMENT ASSETS PEEE
Trade receivables oty 2 AENEZ i) 24303 24,038 48,34 3418 51,759 26,208 26,773 53,001 5226 58221
Property, plant and ERTETR

equipment, right-of- ~ FHELE

use assets, inventories  ZERANEE

and contract assets (i)

(Note) 108,858 4028 112,886 89,860 2,461 92,321
Total segment assets ~ HEEEE 157,199 7446 164,645 142,861 7687 150,548
Other unallocated assets  EtAATEE 77,263 16,114 93377 66,813 39,084 105,807
Total assets BEE 234,462 23560 258,022 209,674 46,771 256445
SEGMENT LIABILITIES 5 E&&

Trade payable EOERER 44,304 1004 45398 40,541 69 40610
Contract iabiitesand ~ AXEELAEEE

lease liabilities 1,866 - 1,866 4,122 1,544 5,666
Total segment liabiities ~ HEE&(E 46,170 1094 47,264 44,663 1,613 46,276
Other unallocated liabilities Et & AT R E 70,976 6,593 77,569 56,012 24,485 80,497
Total liabities gk 117,146 7687 124833 100675 209 126,773
Note: The nature of products, the production processes and B OEMEEREEANErERME -

the methods used to distribute the products to the
OEM customers and retail distributors are similar. The
Group’s production facilities and inventories are located
in the PRC. These two classes of customers utilise the
Group’s resources in a similar manner. Accordingly,
the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
prepaid lease payments and inventories are not
separately allocated to the individual segments of the
OEM customers and retail distributors. In contrast, the
Group’s CODM regularly review trade receivables by
operating segment.
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

102

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Taiwan.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the geographical
location of the customers. Information about the
Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.

DHEER(E)

HEER

KEBZEBURNES PEKRAE -
AREBZIINREEWAER TR P 12

NEZRY - AEBZIERBEEER TR
BEMBUERY -

Revenue from
external customers

IREFE WA
2020 2019
= s
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Korea 45| 72,354 94,425
The PRC F 41,330 77,136
Japan H 7 66,537 68,709
USA *x 77,806 71,366
Taiwan = 19,343 24,107
Others Hibith[= 15,378 12,230
292,748 347,973

Non-current assets
FRBEE

2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ETT FET
The PRC =8 58,262 54,695
Hong Kong B8 18,418 20,241
Others H bbb [= 2,004 252
78,684 75,188
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R I IRAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER@E)
Information about major customers FERFER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years HEFEANEEBWAETE10%IA F2
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group EPWALT :
are as follows:
2020 2019
bt %22 —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Customer Al ZEA 57,709 56,417
Customer B2 %= 5= B2 56,926 84,539
Customer C? =B C? N/A3
32,885 T3
1 Revenue from Retail distributor T REZTESHEZBA
2 Revenue from OEM customer 2 KEOEMEF Z YA
3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total S MR EEA S EME AR EE RS AT HEIBE10% -
revenue of the Group for the respective period.
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 7. EERFETHAEMEURERERS
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FIEEZHM
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the B GEM A REB A RHER 2 5
year, disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and HEFMPBEZENESELRTETHRAEZ
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies RGN -
Ordinance, is as follows:
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Wang Ms. Lee Mr. Yu Mr. Fan
Li Feng Jui-lan Sanlong Xiaoling Total
THREEE FhEzt TFIEEE ELRE - H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
2020 bt 222
Fees we - - - - =
Other emoluments: Hiis
Salaries and other benefits HeREM
Bl 2,083 215 549 444 3,291
Retirement benefit scheme RINEHEE
contributions =3 18 51 18 18 105
2,101 266 567 462 3,396
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

7.

EERTETBRAEMEUREERS

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FlEE %M@
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
Executive directors (Continued) HITES(H)
Mr. Wang Mr. Wong! Mr. Pang? Mr. Kong? Mr. Zhao> Mr.He? Ms.Lee® Mr.Yu® Mr. Fan®
Li Feng Chun Kuo-Shi  Lixing GuoXing Yongyi Jui-lan Sanlong Xiaoling Total
TRie EE REE N7 HEE @kE ZHE  OF=E E%
®E O ORE' R4 RE2 0 RH? 0 R ot ke g4 st
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000
FErT TErT  FEr TEr FEr FEr  TErT  FEr AT FET
2019 “B-hE
Fees we - - - - - - - - - -
Other emoluments:  Eftf{% :
Salaries and other ¥4 RH{E
benefits 7l 1,148 1,680 1,692 - 28 - - - - 4,548
Retirement RINEF]
benefit scheme e
contributions - 18 15 - - - - - - 33
1,148 1,698 1,707 - 28 - - - - 4,581
1 re-designed as a non-executive Director on 5 December 2019 REZZ—NF+-ARRAEERITES

2 resigned on 5 December 2019

3 appointed on 5 December 2019

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

Mr. Wong Chun was re-designated as a non-executive
Director and ceased to act as the chief executive
officer of the Company on 5 December 2019 and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive officer for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

7 e
2 RT-NE+-AHARE
? RZB-NETARAEE

NERBHITES M HBREEAR
ARAEEEREBRM R -

BERAER-_FT-NAFT_ARBRAER
FRTES X TPBEERNRFNTHAE
B LXABBER HEBRERIEAEE
—E-AFT A=t HLEFETHRAE
BRI Z S -
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R I IRAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —Z-ZF£+—-A=+—H I FE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 7. ESERIEZETHRAEMEURIEZES
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FlEE %M@
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
Independent non-executive directors BAEHITES
Dr.Hon. Lo'  Dr.Fong
WaiKwok ChiWan, Dr.Yan Dr.Feng® MrLu' Mr Lau?
SBS, MH, JP Alex  Ka Shing Shen Yongchao Ho Kit, Ivan Total
EEERL
RENEE
REBT FER GEH b1 BkiE S
A¥4t At B [k bk pit 2
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
2020 otk 3:3
Fees we 60 120 - - 90 20 290
Other emoluments: HEniie :
Salaries and other benefits #eREM
&7l = = = = - - -
Retirement benefit scheme BNERIEE
contributions 3% - - - - - - -
60 120 = = % 20 290
1 resigned on 30 June 2020 T RZEZZEFESA=THEE
2 resigned on 2 March 2020 2 RZE-TF=FA-—HET
3 appointed on 3 March 2020 3 R—ZE—=E-A=-HEAT
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106

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 7. ESRIEFTHAEMEUREEZES
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FlEE %M@
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
Independent non-executive directors (Continued) BYEHTEE(H)
Dr.Hon.Lo Dr.Fong*
WaiKwok ChiWan, Dr.Yan® Dr.Feng® MrlLu® Mrlau? Dr.Zhu'
SBS, MH, JP Alex  Ka Shing Shen Yongchao Ho Kit,Ivan ~ Wenhui Total
EEERL
REMEES -
RERE hEE BEE BR o BkE  HUHR KUE
AR#4L ALt B4S g Pt pii At st
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
tET TAr TEr  TEr TEr  FEr  FEr TET
2019 ZE-NE
Fees we 120 119 - - 20 120 30 479
Other emoluments: HEivEe
Salaries and other HeREM
benefits 27 - - — _ _ _ _ _
Retirement benefit RINEFIETE]
scheme contributions = - - - - - - - -
120 119 - - 0 120 30 479

resigned on 31 March 2019
resigned on 2 March 2020
appointed on 31 March 2019
appointed on 10 January 2019
appointed on 5 December 2019
appointed on 3 March 2020

o ol BN o o i
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R I IRAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Independent non-executive directors (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

During the current year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to these directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office and no director had waived any emoluments (2019:
same).

EERTETHRAEMEUREERS
FREEZHME)

BYFHITES@E)

A EFMEBYIFNTES M B RE
ERARRERRME IR -

AEER  AREREANZFESTHNE
IS - ERIMARINARE B R 2 42
BISEERmE  TESEENEREAME (=
T—NF H8R)

Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Wong Chun Total
BEERE et
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
2020 —ECEF
Fees we = G
Other emoluments: Hi<E -
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 771 771
Retirement benefit scheme RRER GBI
contributions 9 9
780 780

Mr. Wong Chun was ceased as non-executive Director
of the Company on 30 June 2020.

BEREER_ZE_ZFEAA=TATEE
EARRBNFEAITES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 7.
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year included, two (2019: two) directors, details of
whose emoluments are included above. Details of the
emoluments for the year of the remaining three (2019:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follow:

EERTETBRAEMEUREERS
FREE ZHME)

==

FRABRAKELEZR=FHEREEIEMEA

—ENEF WMB)EF  EMEFRBEH
REX - FAR - FEARABEFHTRTR
ABRNEB=FR(ZT-NF  =ZR)RaH
BEZMESFBAOT

2020 2019

= —TNF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FEIT

Salaries and other benefits e REMET] 9,360 10,392
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R {RTEFIEH I 2k 105 81
9,465 10,473

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell

within the following bands is as follow:

THMEEEANELARREETNESFHE
BZHBEWT :

2020 2019
—B-FF —T-NF
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEHAE EE&H

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A

Z2%1,000,000/% 7T

1,000,001 7C21,500,000/% 7T
1,500,001% 722,000,000/ 7T
2,000,0017#7C22,500,00074 7T

1 —

-
I

2,500,001;% 7T.23,000,0003% 7T — —
3,000,001;% 77.%3,500,0003% 7T — —
3,500,001;% 1. 24,000,0003% 7T 1 1
4,000,001;% 7T.%4,500,0003% 7T - —
4,500,001;% 7T.%5,000,0003% 7T - —
5,000,001 7T 25,500,000 7T - 1
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e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount mainly represents current tax expense on
assessable profits arising in the PRC and is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the PRC. The Company's
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to
enterprise income tax in the PRC. The applicable
enterprise income tax rate of the PRC is 25% in
accordance with the relevant income tax law and
regulations in the PRC for both years, except for those
subsidiaries described below.

Certain subsidiaries operating in the PRC fall within
the Preferential Corporate Income Tax Catalogue in
the specific zone. According to Cai Shui (2014) No.26,
qualified companies in Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone are granted
for a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15% during
the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2020.
The concessionary tax rates has been concluded at the
end of 2020.

Also, certain subsidiaries operating in the PRC were
accredited as “Cultural Innovation Enterprise” by
the local tax authorities and were registered with the
local tax authorities to be eligible to the reduced 15%
enterprise income tax rate for a period of four years from
2017 to 2020 inclusive. As a result, the tax rate of 15%
is used to calculate the amount of current taxation.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements as there are no
assessable profits for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

FRrEHiRX

ERSHREIBEATREL ZERT G
ZEMHBER RIEPBEZ2BRTH R
8 o T B LM AREINE AR AR
TEEEMEHR - MEFER - RIEFTE
MEMSPAREER  FEERZEE
PSR 25% - T XAtz EHB A
AIERSN

EFREEEZETHBRARMEHFTHE
ZEEMSHERB SEZIGH - RIEMH
(ZZ—UF) 265 - pERBRAIRIEZE
GIERRNZEERRATR_E—NFE—A
—BE_ZET_ZF+_-_A=+—HHRBHA
215% 2 BREBEMME S - B3R
HREDN-_ZE_TFRKRIE -

SO EREGEZETHEARES S
BRI E R CRIBER] - THEE
WRBSHEEETER  AEBR _T—+
FE_FT_ZHE(BREA)NEFHRR
15% 2 BEMERHNERMSH - Bt -
15% 2RI ARAEERHA LS

HAMEFEALEELETRAERY G
Ao R BN S M BEHREREBFEHR
ATEERE -

RE th REHE [ B A 2 T I8 Th iR AR RlUE
BE S B IR & o
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 8. FiSBiMX®)
Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to AEEMEHRAYAMEGEIER K EME
the profit before taxation per the consolidated statement U E TR A BRE A F/ELA R EER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:
2020 2019
bt %22 —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(EE) 5= (2,321) 15,546
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of LAZ I 1557 R 25% =t & 2.
25% I8 (580) 3,887
Tax effect of share of profit of joint BIEEERE RN 2%
ventures ke (219) (284)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FELIEM S BARBRUAZ
purpose s (557) (473)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  FAFHIEM 5 Al MNFFHZ 2
tax purpose W e 3,529 650
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRBEE BT E 180 1,018
Income tax at concessionary rate REBEMETE 2 S (77) (565)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E A FERER 4 2~ KB
operating in other jurisdictions NEMENRZ FE 525 (557)
Income tax expense for the year AEZAEHAY 2,801 3,676

At 31 December 2020, subject to the agreement by
Inland Revenue Department, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$23,465,000 (2019: HK$22,374,000)
available for offset against future profits. The tax losses
are arising from certain Hong Kong subsidiaries which
may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax
assets has been recognised in respect of such tax
losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A

R-ZBE-TFE+—-_A=+—H8 EEIE
BB ERIET  AEBAERDH
THIEE51823,465,0008 T ( — B — h4 -
22,374,0007%8 7T ) Al FR B SH AR OB Al © &
T & BB A B E A 2 B 18 518 0] £ [R 8
EE o R ARAETERT AR IHEFIMA -
REEALEREBEZEBRLEHEE
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e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9.  BIAHF
2020 2019
—EIERF —T-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation has been B ATEF Th 440k (5T A)
arrived at after charging/(crediting): TH&EEZEL :
Directors’ remuneration (Note 7) E=Me (MIFE7) 4,466 5,226
Other staff costs H M8 TR
— Salaries and other benefits -Fre kEMER 83,382 105,067
- Retirement benefits scheme — R RIET 2t 3R
contributions 2,892 7,027
Total staff costs 48 TR 90,740 117,320
Auditor’s remuneration %Gl 1,400 1,351
Cost of inventories recognised as RERSYOFEEHRA
expenses 222,477 238,014
Depreciation e
- Property, plant and equipment - % - WENEE 5,839 6,642
— Right-of-use assets included land - R REEE (Gt AR A
use rights and buildings RETF) 1,517 394
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAGBMBERAX 49 4
Provision of allowance for credit losses (=& 518 & & 1,866 2,123
Rental expenses for short-term leases 4G HIFHEHRSH Y 2,327 5,096
(Reversal)/provision of allowance for FE(BL)  BiEGEAESE R
inventories (included in cost of sales IRIEARFE A )
and services rendered) (2,614) 1,138
ltems included in other income: FFAHMWKRIIER -
Interest income on bank deposits RITFRFEUA (659) (389)
Rental income HelA (1,997) (2,092)
Government subsidies (Note) BT w8 ARG (BRE) (854) =
Tooling and sampling THEREAR (1,114) =
Reversal of other payables and HEMEMRR L TERERAEE
accruals (2,688) =
Items included in other gains and sFAHMKEMBEANIER !
losses:
Net foreign exchange losses HNFEYE S H 5 945 717
Gain on effect of lease modification SIS R A (9) —
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BENER 240 (338)
plant and equipment B8 ()
Impairment loss on club debenture GrfESREEE
(Note 16) (F¥3E16) - 788

Note:

The amount represents salaries and wage subsidies granted
under (i) Anti-epidemic Fund by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for the use of paying
wages of employees of HK$777,000 and (ii) Employment
Support Scheme provided by the PRC government of
HK$77,000 during the financial year.

MiaF - R EERI BT E () 8455177 E BUF A
R HEE TEMHEES777,00078 7T & (ii)
PR A IR LA (R 3h F 51 &177,0008 0 IE 3
WEEFE R TE = -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

10.

11.

112

DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T
Dividends recognised as distribution FAEREDRZIZE
during the year: E(ZE—NF A ZF—N
Nil (2019: payment of 2018 final FREAAR 2 FH%0.37811)
dividend of HK0.3 cents) per share — 1,920
No dividend has been proposed by the Directors in BEEVERRNEBEE_ZT_ZTF+_A
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). =T —HEFEREEFARE(ZE—N
F o fE)
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 11. SKR(EE) BR

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings
per share attributable to the owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

ARBEAAREZERERREE(E
18),/ BRTRBEATERGTHE

2020 2019
b e 222 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to AR QTHEA AERZFER
owners of the Company (EB18), % F (4,576) 12,255
000 ‘000
FiR T
Re-presented
(E31))
Weighted average number of ordinary — F st E EARE AR N #EE
shares for the purpose of basic and (B18),/BF 2 L@k
diluted (loss)/earnings per share IREES 8 678,255 649,846

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the calculation
of basic loss per share is based on the consolidated
loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$4,576,000 and on the weighted average number of
approximately 678,255,000 ordinary shares in issue.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the calculation
of basic earnings per share is based on the consolidated
profit attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$12,255,000 and on the weighted average number
of approximately 649,846,000 (re-presented) ordinary
shares in issue.

No dilutive (loss)/earnings per share has been presented
because the Company did not have any outstanding
potential dilutive ordinary share during the both years.

Basic (loss)/earnings per share are represented to reflect
the bonus element of the placing of shares (Note 25)
during the both years.

11.

ER(ER) B @)

HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HLFE
BRENEGENDABRREGGS BE
& #154,576,000/8 7T REBEITLBER
32 hikEF 58 B 49678,255,0000% 51 & -

1l

BHE_Z—NAE+-_A=+—BILEE -
SREKRZF T ARE B4R E BB
& #49512,255,000 0 0 MEETEE
B 2 hnkEF 15 B 49649,846,0004% (&=
HNEE -

HRARBRMIEFEYERTEINE
EEEERR  RAEZ2IEREE(E
18),/8H -

FREXR(ER), BNEE|ARRL B
184 Z AR B & A (Y 5E25) SRR A & -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

12.

114

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y- BEKRFRE
Furniture
and Office  Computer Motor
Buildings fixtures equipment equipment Machinery  vehicles Total
BT GRREE BOERE ERRE e "E @t
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TEx Fér TEx TEx 27 TEx Tér
COST A
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-N5F
| 54,575 31,123 4,024 3,075 89,608 4,185 186,590
Exchange realignment B A (1,015) (116) (65) (491) (1,556) (807) (4,050)
Additions NE - 1,779 47 1,362 792 - 3,980
Disposals & = (1,030) 27) - (396) (1,269) (2,716)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-nf
+=A=1+-H 53,560 31,756 3,979 3,946 88,448 2,115 183,804
Exchange realignment & 5 3,723 58 173 208 2,637 37 6,836
Additions NE 2,735 829 1,684 105 663 - 6,016
Disposals L& = (663) - (1,084) - (928) (2,675)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-R
=+—H 60,018 31,980 5,836 3,175 91,748 1,224 193,981
DEPRECIATION E
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF
T=EEr= 15,698 29,388 3,759 1,862 80,205 3912 134,824
Exchange realignment & JL AR (328) (156) (68) (68) (1,326) (741) (2,687)
Provided for the year FREE 1,136 653 122 592 3,937 202 6,642
Eliminated on disposals HER M - (1,004) (24) - (396) (1,263) (2,687)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
TS 16,506 28,881 3,789 2,386 82,420 2,110 136,092
Exchange realignment B AR 1,385 195 67 125 2,259 37 4,068
Provided for the year FREE 1,627 846 175 579 2,607 5 5,839
Eliminated on disposals R - (423) - (1,084) - (928) (2,435)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-FF
+=A=1+-H 19,518 29,499 4,031 2,006 87,286 1,224 143,564
CARRYING AMOUNTS S
At 31 December 2020 RZE_EF
SRR e, 40,500 2,481 1,805 1,169 4,462 - 50,417
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+=A=+-A 37,054 2,875 190 1,560 6,028 5 471712
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following

rates per annum:

Buildings

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Machinery

Motor vehicles

2%-3% or over the remaining
term of the relevant lease, if
shorter

20%-33%

20%-33%

20%-33%

14%-20%

20%-30%

12.

ME - BMERREE)

B9 © R R R ME B DA E AR
TR EIE -

BF

BMREKE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

13.

116

LEASES

Group is a lessee.

(i)

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A

13. HE
This note provides information for leases where the A FIREEEAEEEAAEANEE
(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (a) FREEERHEEESERE
Amount recognised in the consolidated (i) RER & B %k 5 2 ;A 78 5%
statement of financial position Ea ]
The consolidated statement of financial FEMBIKRARINTTIE
position shows the following amounts FHESRE:
relating to leases:
Reconciliation of Land use
right-of-use assets Buildings rights Total
FAEEEYR BF LTihFERAE st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FAETT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-—hF—H—H — 7,718 7,718
Addition INE 847 — 847
Depreciation for the year FRITE (35) (359) (394)
Exchange realignment G i, g 3K - (157) (157)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+_H
=1T—H 812 7,202 8,014
Addition NE 2,091 — 2,091
Lease modification HEER (388) - (388)
Depreciation for the year FRITE (1,300) @17) (1,517)
Exchange realignment bEE 5, 3 B ) 631 628
At 31 December 2020 R-T_TF
S— H =t H 1,212 7,616 8,828




13.

LEASES (Continued)

(@)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

13. #HEm®

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (a) FREEERHEHEEE®)
(Continued)
(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated (i) RER & B 7 4t 5 7% A 57
statement of financial position (Continued) TE(E)
Reconciliation of Land use
lease liabilities Buildings rights Total
HEEEHE BF LTihFERARE st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FAETT
At 1 January 2019 RZE—hNF—H—H — - =
Addition NE 847 — 847
Interest 2 4 — 4
Lease payments HERR (33) = (33)
Interest paid BRFE ) = ()
At 31 December 2019 RZE-—NAF+H
== 814 — 814
Addition NE 2,091 — 2,091
Lease modification HEBER (397) - (397)
Interest F B 49 — 49
Lease payments HERFK (1,288) - (1,288)
Interest paid BERFE (49) = (49)
Exchange alignment PE 5 3% () — )
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZE-_FEF+_H
& i dE 1,217 - 1217
2020 2019
—EBCEF —T—hEF
Lease liabilities HK$°000 HK$°000
HEEE FET FEIT
Current Vi) 309 413
Non-current IERE 908 401
Total 4ast 1,217 814
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. #HE®Ww)
(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (@) FEHAEEERESEEE®
(Continued)
(i)  Amount recognised in the statement of (i) REEKRBRAEZLHE

comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive HEEEWRERYT NG
income shows the following amounts FAHESH
relating to leases:

Year ended Year ended
Depreciation charge 31 December 31 December
of right-of-use assets 2020 2019

BE-Z-ZF BE-Z-NF
+=—A=+—8 +=RA=+-—H

FAEEEREER LFE LFE

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Buildings gF 1,300 35

Land use rights 4 b {E PR A 217 516

Total Bt 1,517 551
Interest expenses on lease HEAENEME

liabilities 49 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. HE®W)
(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (@ FEREEEREEEE®)
(Continued)
(i)  Future lease payments are due as (i) FHRELEEHANT :
follows:
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2020 2020
R=F=%2F R=F=-BF RN=-F-%FF
+=A=+—-B +=A=+—-8B +=A=+—H
BiX#HS FIE RE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET
Not later than one year —FEPUR 335 26 309
Later than one yearand  #Bi8—4 « {8
not later than two NERBRE
years 267 20 247
Later than two years and  #BiBFR4E - 1B
not later than five years ~ BB R4 681 20 661
Total st 1,283 66 1,217
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2019 2019
R=Z—NE R=Z2-—HIE RZ=ZZE-—HLF
ih = =t H - R S =S I = H= =0
BEHEE FIE BE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T FET
Not later than one year —F PR 447 34 413
Later than one yearand  #8i8—4 - {8
not later than two BB
years 410 9 401
Total st 857 43 814
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. #HE@®@)
(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (a) FREEERHEEE®)
(Continued)
(iv)  The Group’s leasing activities (iv) XEFHEZE

120

v)

The Group leases various offices and
factories. Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of two years, but
may have extension options as described
in (v) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are
included in a number of property and
equipment leases across the Group.
There are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The
extension and termination options held
are exercisable only by the Group and not
by the respective lessor.

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

~ e IR AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 January 2019 A
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss 8z

At 31 December 2019 prA—
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss 8%

At 31 December 2020 i

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group.

The fair value was determined using direct comparison
approach assuming sales of the properties in their
respective existing status and by making reference to
comparable sales evidences as available on the market.
There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The properties were valued using the direct comparison
method using the sales comparison approach based on
recent sales of comparable properties in the area. The
key input under this approach are the price per square
feet on saleable floor area basis from current year sales
of comparable lots of properties in the area (location and
size) and which maximise the use of observable market
data and reply as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
there were no transfers into or out of level 2 or any other
level (2019: transfer from level 3 to level 2).

REWE
HK$°000
FET
—A—H 14,980
FAER (230)
—A=+—H 14,750
B (500)
—E=#+=-A=+—H 14,250

ARBNKLEHOBFEARBRESHER
BENMENEEaIRELIRSRE
W% > WRARFEENGTHE -

AEBREVENR_ZT_FTER_FT—A
Ft-A=1— EZ N E TR AN [E
BEmE s BIAEREXGEME—K
$Wﬁﬁﬂﬁ1éfﬁ&§¥@?ﬂﬁﬂﬁ E)NAS
EITZEEER -

Fr@?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ttﬁ}f BROEME

Qiﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂ”%m%—f SZAE
tbfﬁﬁﬁ’fﬁ - MBEFERAZ
1&1@7@2&%?@%%@3

REFMEZATER  NEZES IR
ERESBERAE -

RERLEEL RIBZ M E AT LB EN
A ERERBEE L BORHMEETH
B -ZNHZEANEBRBASENZMERE
HEZMENEFHER(LERANNE
HHREREEFENEF T RRER -
I S AR E AR A BREA TS BERT
BARERVESEERNMG - BE-T
“EFT-RA=1T—HIEFE  WEEM
EERESE — RS E MR R R T EA
H(ZB-NF RE=ZRBAZE_R) -
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. EREYHE (e
Details of the Group’s investment properties and REEB IR EMEFBEREER_ZE_Z
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 ER—TE—NF+_A=+—HZAF¥E
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: EWRERAE -

Fair value as
Level 2 at 31/12/2020

R-B-EHF
+=A=+—8
E-R AN )
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Commercial property units VREEZERYESA
located in Hong Kong 14,250 14,250

Fair value as
Level2 at 31/12/2019

R-ZE—hF
t=RA=t—H
E-R ZAYE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Commercial property units R ES 2 ERMEEN
located in Hong Kong 14,750 14,750
15. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 15. REELENER
Details of the Group’s interests in joint ventures are as REBREGERENERFBRT ¢
follows:
2020 2019
bt 242 —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Cost of investment in joint ventures REBDEMTEKAR 5 5
Share of post-acquisition profit FE(RURBE 18 5 R I B Ath 2 T U &S
and other comprehensive income 5,184 3,758
5,189 3,763
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

~ e IR AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

On 11 January 2017, PT Design International Limited
(“PT Design International”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and an independent third party
entered into an agreement for the establishment of PT
& PL China Limited (“PT & PL China”), a Hong Kong
incorporated company with issued share capital of
HK$10,000. PT Design International subscribed for 5,100
ordinary shares in PT & PL China, representing 51% of
the entire issued share capital. Upon the completion of
the capital contribution, the Group holds 51% equity
interest in PT & PL China. The Group has the right to
appoint one out of two voting directors in the board
of directors of PT & PL China in which the decisions
about the relevant activities of PT & PL China require the
unanimous consent of the director from both PT Design
International and the other shareholder. In this regard,
the investment in PT & PL China is accounted for as
joint venture of the Group. At the same time, PT & PL
China formed a wholly owned subsidiary in the PRC, PT
& PL Architectural Design Consulting (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd (“PT & PL Architectural Design”). Hence, the Group
indirectly owned 51% equity interest in this company.

Particulars of the joint ventures of the Group at 31
December 2020 and 2019 are set out as follow:

Principal

15.

REBELENER @)

R=ZFE—+tF—F+—8 AQRZ2EMH
BARMERTEBEAR AR ([1AERE
BIR |) BB 5 = A AL IAE M AR (R
BDERAR([HRERMA(PE) ] —fER
ERAFMAKLz AR EEBITRAAS
10,0008 70 ) 51 3 Wik TS RETEIRR
EEmMR (P E) K5, 1000 L@ - 162
R BITIRANS51% - T TER - AE
EiEEMERN(PE)51% iE - AEH
ERZENERM(FBREZESSRMEHE
BRAENEEZ — HPhBBEAERMN
() MR R R BB EIHERTE
BREMKRENESH —HEE - 5t
RBERN(PR)MIREUNREREE D
EAR - RE - SRR (PR EHEK
NTE2EWBARRERN(EE)BRER
AR AR([MAERMN(EE)EER

1) o Bt - REBEEEAZLTS51%
KRR ©
RB-TEFER - T—NFE+-_A=+—

B AKERELEOFHBLT

Place of place of Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting rights

Name of entity incorporation business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
FEEfSZ FEEfSZ
ERER MY FEEEHY BERREEILA R TBER
2020 2019 2020 2019
“B-BF —T-NF CZB-EF —T-NF
PT & PL China Hong Kong Hong Kong 51% 51% 50% 50%  Provision of comprehensive
architectural services
BERMH(PE) &R £ 51% 51% 50% 50% fREZERERY
PT & PL Architectural ~ PRC PRC 51% 51% 50% 50% Provision of comprehensive
Design* architectural services
mEmK( L8 RERT T th 51% 51% 50% 50% IREt2ERERS
*  The English name of the company established in China represents HAMATME AR EE  ZEPEK A ATRE

management’s best effort at translating the Chinese name as no

XA EREAZAIER G iR X R B EmX -

official English name has been registered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

15.

124

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 15.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint ventures is set out below. The summarised

REELENER @)

AEBEELCXR WK ENBM BRI M
T THMBEHMBENAELERER

financial information below represents amounts shown B EHREELRR 2 G8 WBHmERTR
in the joint venture’s consolidated financial statements ©H o
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFHET BT

As at 31 December: R+—B=+—8:
Current assets mENEE 43,059 24,216
Non-current assets ERENEE 205 459
Current liabilities mENEE (33,089) (17,295)
Net assets BE TR 10,175 7,380
Included in the above amounts are: LR ERET

Cash and cash equivalents B hZERIES£IER 3,739 3,540

Current financial liabilities (excluding mEcmAE(TEREES REM

trade and other payable) FERIFIE) 12,436 =

Year ended 31 December: BE+-—A=1t—HLEE:
Revenue WA 31,949 43,973
Profit for the year F AR A 2,597 2,227
Other comprehensive income Hiv 2 A 198 -
Total comprehensive income FHIRRBEE 2,795 2,227
Included in the above amounts are: LR EEET -

Depreciation and amortisation & N gy 269 272

Interest income FBUA (49) (89)

Income tax expense FrfSfiFA> 96 198
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in a
joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

15.

REBELENER @)

B ER MR BN AR A M HRAR N E
RN —HEELENES cREE Y
BRONTE ¢

2020 2019

et e 222 —T-hF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET TFET

Net assets of PT & PL China BEm (R ) EEFE 10,175 7,380
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBRERM(FR) Z

interest in PT & PL China AL 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A& EAAERMR(RE) 2

in PT & PL China R s 2 BREE 5,189 3,763

CLUB DEBENTURE

The club debenture with indefinite period represents
entrance fee paid to a golf club. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group recognised impairment
loss of HK$788,000 by reference to the current
market price and included in other gains and losses.
Due to increasing supply in secondary market, the
club debenture had been reduced to its recoverable
amount, which has the fair value less costs of disposal,
of HK$372,000.The valuation has considered to be
level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, since no significant
adjustments need to be adjusted from the prices
obtained from the market.

On 3 December 2019, the Group disposed of its club
debenture to a company wholly owned by Wong Chun,
a non-executive director of the Company, at carrying
amount of HK$372,000.

16.

BES

ERBNEMERERA—BRBRIREMHM
SN2 GE - RBE_T-AF+_-A
=t+—BLEFE AFEE2EERME
f£72788,000/% 7T 2 B {E BRI 5t A B ALK
BAMBKR - AR RIS HEIEN - SFF
BHFEEAFER O EXNAREEE AR
Bl & #3872,000/8 7T - AN ERH I HIHE
BOERETENAE  BEKRRAAYF
BEEETAE R -

RZZE-NAF+-A=H ' *5BHEE
& 5% Bk E372,00058 ST HH & T A A 7
FHTEETERLEHEANRT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % 3% 2020

125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

17. DEPOSITS PAID 17. E2ff#&e
2020 2019
—E-EH TR
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FETT
Deposits paid for B TISBEB MRS
— property, plant and equipment — M - R &EE = 949
18. INVENTORIES 18. BH
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Raw materials and consumables ERE R ERES 19,267 14,646
Work in progress ERG 9,012 7,128
Finished goods BUAY 22,310 13,571
50,589 35,345

The Group recognised provision of allowance on certain
slow moving inventories of HK1,138,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019. During the current year, the
Group made a reversal of its provision of inventories of
HK$2,614,000.
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AEEEEIAXLBOBEGTERES
1,138,000/ 7T - AAFE - AEBEE#E
HIFE#4%2,614,00075 7T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EFZRHEAEWERRK
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Trade receivables E 5 BRI
— sales of connectivity products —HEERE®R 51,886 56,725
— provision of comprehensive — IR EERS
architectural services 6,043 5,806
57,929 62,531
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (6,170) (4,304)
51,759 58,227
Prepayments SEUNECE] 10,508 3,129
Refundable rental deposits paid ENAREEERS 418 306
Value added tax receivables FEUIZ(E TS 4,441 934
Others Hith 2,158 2,195
69,284 64,791
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables REEER - REZAMBEFWINREER
net of allowance for credit losses, presented based on B R 2 B S BRI R DT T

the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period.

Provision of

comprehensive Sales of connectivity
architectural services products
RMESEEERE HEEREM
2020 2019 2020 2019

—g-®E —T-HF —B-BE —TNF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHT FET FHT

0-30 days 0£=30H 996 1,602 18,962 21,228
31-120 days 31£120H 1,169 3,018 29,221 30,160
121-180 days 121£180H 547 261 110 1,590
Over 180 days HiE180H 706 345 48 23

3,418 5,226 48,341 53,001
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. EBZRHMEWERR®)

RBEHR - HI B 2L MR EES
BREZESRUSRRZ RO

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for credit losses, presented based on
the due dates at the end of the reporting period.

Provision of

comprehensive Sales of connectivity

architectural services products
REZERZERY HEEBER
2020 2019 2020 2019
—B-%F T NF ZB=BF T NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FETT FET

Not past due 42 750 2 996 4,620 45,491 50,833

Less than 31 days past @ HIA31H
due 1,169 — 2,454 1,988
31-120 days past due #HI31£=120H - 261 348 6
121-180 days past due  #Hf121Z=180H 547 — 43 174
Over 180 days past due #IHAEB:E180H 706 345 5 —
3,418 5,226 48,341 53,001

REMREFAHELA - AEEFEBEER
FOEEEER KMKEEFEERE -
AEEFESRS TP ZRERFTD

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customers’ credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.

RHEEERERNS A5EEATESR
P IEHEEHNF15E21208(=ZE—H
£ : 30=180H) ©

For the sales of connectivity products, the Group allows
an average credit period ranging from 15 to 120 days
(2019: 30 to 180 days) to its trade customers.

REHEEZEREME - AKELER
HEPERTHRERE -—NEEH - BRTE
MEPHEER-—RROBNA - tTIAE
BREFEFEREARERRIBER AN
FIRE - RERBRETEEMERE -

As for the provision of comprehensive architectural
services, the Group does not have a standardised and
universal credit period granted to its customers. The
credit period granted to individual customer is within
90 days in general, which the Group considered on a
case-by-case basis, depending on the credibility and
reputation of the customers and as stipulated in the
project contract.

128

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 31(b)(ii).

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A

BB S MEMBUERRREN GFE
B EES (b)) ©



20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

CONTRACT ASSETS BREE
2020 2019
—B-EF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Provision of comprehensive
architectural services M2 EEERG 3,052 1,250

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right
to consideration for work completed and not billed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s
future performance in achieving specified milestones at
the reporting date on the comprehensive architectural
services. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.
The Group typically transfer contract assets to trade
receivables upon achieving the specified milestones in
the contracts.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in Note
31b(ii).

BREETERMASEIE TK MK
RTREBAENERN - REJZEBER
HURP A BN HE B HER 2 E 2R
B EERBARERT - REBENK
REREE  ANEEEREE SRR
Ko ARBRBERENANEEEEMR
B BENEEEREE SRR

AEERZEANEEDERRY  REA
RASEBRHER - REERAPABEZE
BE -

S E R E B A KT EE3 T (b)(ii) ©

Movements in contract assets EHEESD
2020 2019
—EC-EF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH&T
Balance at beginning of year FEEER 1,250 5,630
Decrease in contract assets as R = FNE 5 FE R FIE(F4)
a result of transferring to trade ATAEHEE)BRNENEE
receivables during the year that R
was included in the contract
assets at the beginning of the year (200) (5,080)
Increase in contract assets as a B R M ARFE TRRWEREE
result of consideration for work B A A EEE
completed and not billed 2,002 700
Balance at end of year FRES 3,052 1,250
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

21. AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE 21.
At 31 December 2020, the amount is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22,

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits
with the original maturity of three months or less of
HK$20,000 (2019: HK$13,182,000) at fixed interest rates
ranging from 0.32% to 0.66% (2019: 2.30% to 2.60%)
per annum and bank balances of HK$55,914,000 (2019:
HK$66,193,000) at variable interest rates with effective
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.30% (2019:
0.05% to 0.77%) per annum and cash balances of
HK$469,000 (2019: HK$496,000).

Details of impairment assessment of short-term bank
deposits and bank balances are set out in Note 31b(ii).
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By —EEELERE
R-Z-ZFF+_A=+—H ZHER
EIER - RENRREBLEE -

RITEBRAE

BTEHRBERIBAEAE=M@AURN
BEBNTF0.32% £0.66% (—E— A,
F:2.30% F2.60%) 2 BEEMNEGTEZ
5 HASR 1T 12 2020,0008 0 ( = F — hL4F -
13,182,000/ 70 ) MR BB F F N F
0.01% £0.30% (—Z— 1.4 : 0.05%
Z0.77%) 2 F B F EE B 2 RITHE R
55,914,000/ 7t (=& — .4 : 66,193,000
BT ) A IR £ 4582469,00006 T (—Z— 1
F : 496,000/57T) ©

BRARHRITERLIRITER BB G
#BEE M EE31b() ©



23.

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 23.

ACCRUALS

The Group has been granted an average credit period
ranging from 30 to 150 days from its trade suppliers for

both years.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I IRAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

BEZRAERN  HUEMRRARARE
A

AEEXMEFEEE SHERSE T 2F
HEEHHN 302150 -

RBEMR HBREAHPR2INZ2EHEN

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the BRI Z BRER DATIOR
reporting period:
2020 2019
= —TNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables B SR
Within 30 days 30BA 13,247 14,400
31-90 days 31290H 21,535 12,156
91-150 days 91%2150H 7,524 10,553
Over 150 days HBiE150H 3,092 3,501
45,398 40,610
Staff salaries and welfare payables FENE TH4 RET 12,856 27,805
Refundable rental deposits received B AR SRS 260 358
Value added tax payable and other tax FE{T18{EF7 K E 4th FE (< 7 38
payables 1,421 377
Accrued operating expenses fEEHE &R 18,201 11,440
Others Hith 625 1,346
33,363 41,326
78,761 81,936
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24. SHEE
2020 2019
—EB-EF —TNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEIT FETT
Sales of connectivity products SHERERE D 1,556 3,709
Provision of comprehensive et 2 mEERE
architectural services — 1,544
Total 4=t 1,556 5,253

The contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation
to transfer performance obligation to customers for
which the Group has received considerations from the
customers.

When the Group receives a deposit before the sales of
connectivity products or comprehensive architectural
services commence, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount
of the deposit received.

ENAEEAKREREREFPRERER

BRREOEENER

EAKERNHERRE MR EHEERSE

FE AT R S -

-9 S=olh ey -2a

BMAE  EEREREOBRANKRAR

BEWIZE DR

Movements in contract liabilities EHERBEH
2020 2019
—EBF —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FAET
Balance at beginning of year T EEER 5,253 12,770
Decrease in contract liabilities as AERERNWRAGEAFTENE
a result of recognising revenue BE)BHHE R ERD
during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (3,862) (12,770)
Increase in contract liabilities as a WEIR S BHME AR EEM
result of receiving deposits 165 5,253
Balance at end of year FREEER 1,556 5,253

132 GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A




25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL [N
Number Share
of shares capital
B EE [
‘000 HK$°000
FHE FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BIRHEEO0.018 T 2 LA
Authorised: JRIE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 R-Z—HFE—H—H -
and 31 December 2020 —E-NAFt+-A=1t—"HRK
—EZEFEF+ZA=1+—H 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE :
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December R-_Z—h&E—A—BK
2019 —E—hEFE+-A=+—H 640,000 6,400
Issue of new shares BITERAD 64,000 640
At 31 December 2020 N-_E-_EF+_-_A=+—H 704,000 7,040

On 3 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the
placing agent placed 64,000,000 placing shares at the
placing price of HK$0.1 per placing share to certain
independent placees. The net proceeds from the
subscription is net of related issued costs and expenses.

Following the completion of the placing of shares
on 22 June 2020, the amounts of HK$640,000 and
HK$5,438,000 were credited to the Company’s
share capital and share premium account (Note 34)
respectively.

R-ZZE-_ZTFEXA=H ARAFIHEEER
BIIVRERS Bt BEREBRRES
BERESRM0.1B TRE TEI AR A
it 64,000,000 FR E /%19 - REBATIS K
EFRE R AEREE TR AR °

EREERMNR_Z_ZTFA=+=H
FERK {4 © 640,0007% 7T 12.5,438,000/% 7T E,
2Bl AR R B A B B A7 4 1B B (BT =
34) o
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

26. OPERATING LEASES 26.
The Group as lessor
Property rental income earned during the year was

HK$1,997,000 (2019: HK$2,092,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for future minimum lease
payments as follows:

EERN
AEBMBHAA
FAMMIRZ WEEE KA R1,997,000

T(ZZF— N4 : 2,092,00057T) ©

RBEMR - AREEBFIIHNZAREK
ERESMT

2020 2019
= —FTNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Within one year —F R 1,989 2,072
In the second to third year inclusive FFEF-—F(BEEEMRT) 348 2,142
2,337 4,214
27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 21. BXERRE
2020 2019
—EBCEF —T-hEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Capital expenditure in respect of the B ETAMBRALRA BIFSERER A #
acquisition of property, plant and H2 KB - BE REE2
equipment contracted for but not B
provided in the consolidated financial
statements — 382
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme
adopted on 13 December 2001 (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees, the Company may grant options
to executive directors and full-time employees of the
Group to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors
or their associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of options. Options may be
exercised at any time from the thirteenth month from
the date of grant to the fifth anniversary of the date of
grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company, and will be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

No share options were granted under the Scheme since
its adoption.

28.

BRESE

REARANR_FT—F+_A+=AK
WARBIEE R A ERER ZBEEE
(T5F81))  ARBAAAKRERTEER
EREEBRTRBARRRN 2 BAHE -

RERDNFIREE LA - BIEFTEI AT 8E
B 2 B RTS M 2 5 BT 5
AR B AEREFE 2 BT 230% o
REAR DB REELIME - FEER—F
A AEAA LB T 2 BRRERT S & 2 B
DEE TEBAAR R NME(TEREE T
Bfn21% ° Wi% T EBRESIB L IEMIT
EERHBBA T ZEREBOAQARK
K 20.1% - sk{E{EH##%5,000,0007% 7T + Al
AR R AR B SR ©

REMNBRECE TR - BRMIETZ
HZERE - BREVTEEAREAHES
+=@EAERL AHEARBAT 2 HILHME
ERREITE - THEESBEARAESE
T BETMERUT=FHRz&mE : ()FQ
ARG RIRE B2 HE (i) ROER
ERTEPAREEREE 2 FHKRHE &
(iii) i 7 2 EIE °

BT SIERMA AR - AR B ERESE
BRI -
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

29.

30.

136

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme and a retirement benefit scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong and the Taiwan,
respectively. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% and 6%
of relevant payroll costs to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and the defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme respectively, which contribution
is matched by employees. For contribution to the
Mandatory Provident Fund, the maximum amount is
HK$1,500 per month.

Eligible staff of subsidiaries operating in the PRC
currently participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The PRC
subsidiaries is required to contribute an amount of
10% on the covered payroll of its employees to the
central pension scheme for the funding of the retirement
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of the eligible
employees of the PRC subsidiaries.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities
within the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
issue of new debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I IRAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. £RIA
Categories of financial instruments (@ S@MIAESE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT

Financial assets tEEE
Financial assets at amortised cost IR K AYI|EZ S REE 110,738 140,599

Financial liabilities cRAas
Amortised cost bl DN 60,356 70,933

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables and amounts due
to directors. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
included market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(b)
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CREREEERREE

AEBZTESRMTIABREES R
HEUWARR - SRITABRERE -
BHREMENERTIARENES
RIE - R T AFBRABNE
W - BZEeRmITAABNRR
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%) EERREABECEAR - T
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31. £RIAEW®W

tREREEEERBE G

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (Continued)

138

(i) Market risk (i) i E
Currency risk B mgE

Several subsidiaries of the Company have
foreign currency sales and purchases,
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

ARBZBRMBRARER
AN SHE R IHE MRS -
1 1 6 7 &= B & X 511
i o AELBIRAEIL J|F] LI
BEIPRER - R - AEE
EEE-EHEEREXRRY
RN RREBEHREZRI
R

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Assets EE
USD (note 1) o (PsE1) 12,976 9,430
New Taiwan dollar (“NTD”) Fas(xarl) 326 1,566
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARB(TARKE]) 416 365
Liabilities =t
NTD Fakk 2,073 2,046
RMB AR 24 33

Note 1: Functional currency of the respective
subsidiaries is RMB/HK$. Since HK$

Hiatt: BB LARZIEE
BRARY ET - A

is pegged to USD and immaterial 7 T B3R T N 8 B LA

monetary items denominated in USD EnstEzEEIEE K

against the functional currency of RMB, N EBARENTE

no sensitivity analysis is presented. AN A EZIGRE
DHT o
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e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

31. £®MIAwW®W

(b)

SREREEEERBE G

Market risk (Continued) (i) B R B ()
Currency risk (Continued) B 7 b ()
The following table details the Group’s TRAJAEELHETHA
sensitivity to a 5% (2019: 5%) increase RERHaEAENMERE
and decrease in USD against RMB and 5% (ZZF—hF : 5%)H)
NTD. 5% (2019: 5%) is the sensitivity rate BRE - EREFGHAE
used by management for the assessment BE Y FE = B4 8 B BT R 9 5K
of the reasonably possible change in B ERE% (ZZT— N -
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity 5%) r REDTABIER
analysis includes only outstanding foreign EWINESTHEERIRE -
currency denominated monetary items WERFERIZEEFE% (=
and adjusts their translation at the year T—NF  5%)BEEHBRE
end for a 5% (2019: 5%) change in the TUAFE - EE(BE8) KRB
foreign currency rates. A positive number EAREBRFEEHLETLSR
(negative number) indicates a decrease FHERE R T EER A (B8
in loss (an increase in loss) (2019: an I (ZFE—NF - m=FE
increase in profit (a decrease in profit)) meaFmA)) o
where RMB and NTD strengthens against
the USD.
Impact of RMB Impact of NTD
AR¥zHE Rk E
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZR-%F _T-AF  CBI®E ETE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT FET
Impact on profit/(loss) for HENRF/ (FR) 22
the year 19 17 (87) (25)
Interest rate risk T3 2

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets and liabilities, the Group's
income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in
market interest rate.
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

140

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group’s principal financial assets
are trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables
and contract assets. The Group is
exposed to concentration of credit risk
as a substantial portion of its sales is
generated from a limited number of
customers. At 31 December 2020, the top
five customers of the Group accounted
for about 66.2% (2019: 71.2%) of the
Group’s trade receivables and contract
assets, all of which are engaged in
business of connectivity products with
good reputation. In order to minimise
the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each debt on a
collective and on-going basis to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

31. €WmIEHwm)

(b) EEEAREEBERBEKE

(i)

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A

FEmERR B ETE

RZZEZEFR_T—NF
+=—A=+—8 " A£EE
HFEHRERTETMEY
B EE 2 xRN EER
% RNERE B AR R R
FiP| S EERREMEEZ
BRMAE ©

AEBETESREERE
7 RE A EUYRR R  SRITH
BRI

AEEZEERBEERE
EBESRKERREEHNE
EoBHREBRITHHEET
KREBREE 2B - A
EEAAXEERREY 2
Bk c RZZFT_ZF+=H
=+—H AEEBRKREF
HAREBEEZEBERRE
HBELNG66.2% (—E—Hh
F:71.2%)  BFEHUEE
BEMRXER  EE2RIif- A
BEERBREREK A&
EEEECREEKAEE
EEERE EEEHEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The credit risk on bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following

categories:

Internal
credit rating

AEEERR i

2

Description

o

EWMIAMH

SREREEEERBE G

(i)  1EE/mEERBEFE ()

BN T RBEREEFR
BB EREBREENR
BWBRRITRERL
EERBAR -

ZIRTT

RE B A RS KB b fF AR
AHEBE TN

Trade receivables/
contract assets
ESENER
BHEE

Other financial assets

HitsMEE

Low risk

(R

Watch list

BReE

Doubtful

R

Loss

B B

Write-off

fiisA

The counterparty has a low risk of default

HFTNENERRIE

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but

usually settle the amounts

BEHEAREBHES  ERRSENE

There have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or external

resources

REELIR AR ERBREERR

ANSRREBEEEN

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-

impaired

RERTAECLRERRE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and the Group

has no realistic prospect of recovery

AEBBTNEEARABENERERTEE

PEER AR E R

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
REENENTED
EHEEER

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
BEERENTES
BHEEER

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
REERENTED

EHEEER
Lifetime ECL —

credit-impaired
EELEERENT

EBHRBEESE

Amount is written off

TROHEH

12-month ECL

12EARBEEEE

12-month ECL

12EARSEEEE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

BEERENTES
EHEEEE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

EELHEERENT
BHREHEEEHE

Amount is written off

RO
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk
exposures of the Group’s financial assets
and contract assets, which are subject to
ECL assessment:

E@MITE@®)

b) SEEREEEEREE®

(i)  1EE/mEERBEFE ()

TR AKEAETTEY
FEEEBERFENEREER
BREENEERRHS

Internal
2020 Notes credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
ZECER ME ABEETR 12EARFENELNEEEE BIREE
HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets at amortised cost
RBERATENSREE
Bank balances and cash 22 Lowrisk 12-month ECL 56,403
RITEARRRE Vel 12{8 AEHEEER
Other receivables 19 Low risk 12-month ECL 2,576
Hth AR Vel 12(d AEHEEEE
Trade receivables — sales of 19 Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-
connectivity products impaired
BHRNES — HEERER Vel BEERENTENEREE
B
48,341
19 Loss risk Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired
B EEAGERENTENRES
FEER
3,545
Trade receivables — provision of 19 Watch list Lifetime ECL — not credit-
comprehensive architectural impaired
services
BHRNER — RIEZERERS BELE REEAENFEAREEE
Eig
6,043 57,929
Other items
HitE R
Contract assets 20 Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired
BHARE iNENw BEERENTENESEE
B 3,052

142  GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED &2 &5 (15%) SR A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I IRAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(i)

31. €@IAw
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and b) SHEAREEEERBK®
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (ii) 1S5 &R E T (5
(Continued)
Internal
2019 Notes credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
“E2-NF WE ABEETR 12EARFENELNEEEE BREE
HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHRATENERER
Bank balances and cash 22 Low risk 12-month ECL 79,871
FITERRRE Vel 12{8 AEHEEER
Other receivables 19 Low risk 12-month ECL 2,501
Hith R ERER 12(d AEHEEREE
Trade receivables — sales of 19  Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-
connectivity products impaired
BORUERN — HEESER iVEN REEAENFERRSAEE
B
53,001
19  Loss risk Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired
B EEAGERENFERRN
FEER
3,724
Trade receivables — provision of 19 Watch list Lifetime ECL — not credit-
comprehensive architectural impaired
services
BHRUERN — RE2ERERS BELE REENENFEARSGEE
BB
5,806 62,531
Other items
HitEE
Contract assets 20 Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired
BHEAE iNEN EEEAENTERESREE
ER 1,250
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = T -EF+ - A=+—HIFE

31.

144

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The credit risk on trade receivables under
sales of connectivity products is limited
because the counterparties are with low
loss rates which is estimated based on
historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost
or effort. During the year, provision of
allowance of credit losses of HK$179,000
is reversed (2019: provision of credit
losses of HK$1,991,000 was recognised)
for the debtors with credit-impaired with
gross carrying amount of HK$3,545,000
(2019: HK$3,724,000) as at 31 December
2020.

During the year, provision of allowance
of credit losses of HK$2,045,000 (2019:
HK$132,000) is recognised for these
debtors with lifetime ECL and not credit-
impaired with gross carrying amount of
HK$2,625,000 (2019: HK$580,000) as at
31 December 2020.

31.
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E@MITE@®)

(b)

(i)

EEEERBKR®@E)

= E/mfR R B E G ()

HEERKERNE S EUER
REERBRAER @ REAY
FANEBRERE  BREE
BE TR E R E U ER KT8

Hﬂ—fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁ’ﬂ_ﬁ'ﬁ&ﬁﬂ
BHAXRME UHBAT

B ARSKE B A] &S
RATRE M ERHEL FAE -
RAFE  BERR_T_TF
+-_A=+—HB#EEE
43,545,000 T(—ZF— 11
£ : 3,724,000 7T ) K E
WA= E R E R R SR B Bl A
REEEERE179,0008
T(ZE—NF - BEREHRE
EEE 1,991,000 7T) o

RAFE BT =F

+-_A=+—H#HEKEE
/2,625,000 C(—ZF— 1
£ : 580,000 7T ) IZ 17 EH
EHEEEETENEREER
BERBRZIERIREER
[E518 452,045,000 7T ( =
T— A4 : 132,000 7T) ©
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R I IRAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31. SRTIAEW®E

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) <SrEEAKREEREREE®
policies (Continued)

(ii) Credit risk and impairment assessment (ii) = E R R FE S (&)
(Continued)
The following tables provide information TREJBFEAEERE S
about the Group’s exposure to credit JEWBR R M A K EERET
risk and ECLs for trade receivables and HIH FTE R )= B Bl & 78
contract assets according to their past H=EERER -
due dates:

Provision of comprehensive

architectural services Sales of connectivity products
REERERY HEERER
Gross Net Gross Net
Expected  carrying Loss carrying Expected carrying Loss  carrying

lossrate  amount allowance  amount lossrate  amount allowance  amount

FE  BAEBEE AREE FREE BEFE BHEEER LAREE FEEE EBEFE
+—H % HK$ HK$ HK$ % HK$ HK$ HK$
Bk B B B Aok B B BT

As at 31 N
December 2020 I

Not past due 3l - 996 - 996 - 45,491 - 45,491
Lessthan31days  @HEPHA31A
past due 5% 2435 (1,266) 1,169 — 2454 - 2454
31-120 days pastdue  #Ei31%120H N/A - - = = 348 = 348
TEH
121-180 days past #E1212180H
due 5% 1139 (592) 547 = 43 = 43
Overdue 180 days @ EiB#E180H 52% 1,473 (767) 706 - 5 - 5
Individual assessment  28IEzL(E N/A
A e L. —~  100% 3545 (3545 2

6,043 (2,625) 3,418 51,886 (3,545) 48,341
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31. £RIEAw®m)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and b) SEEREEEEREE®
policies (Continued)
(i)  Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) EEmEERBEFEE
(Continued)
Provision of comprehensive
architectural services Sales of connectivity products
Rt ERERE HERBER
Gross Net Gross Net
Expected  carrying Loss  carrying Expected  carrying Loss  carrying
loss rate amount  allowance amount  loss rate amount  allowance amount
As at 31 RIZ-NGE BiEEE LZ%5EE BEEE FOYE BEEEX SFRRE BEEE RODFE
December 2019 +=-RA=1+-H % HK$ HK$ HK$ % HK$ HK$ HKS
Bl BT BT BT Bl BT BT BT
Not past due Ei5 10% 5,133 (513) 4,620 - 50,833 - 50,833
Less than 31 days BEDH31E N/A - - - - 1,988 - 1,988
past due NEf
31-120 days past due  #£i31%2120H 10% 290 29) 261 - 6 - 6
121-180 days past #E1212180H N/A - - - - 174 - 174
due Nam
Overdue 180 days HAEE180H 10% 383 (38) 345 N/A - - -
am
Individual assessment  2IEzL(E N/A
NER = = - 100% 3,724 (3,724) -
5,806 (580) 5,226 56,725 (3,724) 53,001
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(ii) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following table shows the movement
in allowance for credit losses that has
been recognised for trade receivables
under the simplified approach.

EWMIAMH

(b) LREAKRSEAERINESE)

(i)  1EE/mEERBEFE ()

TR RBA AR
R 55 8 B 33 ) £ B A
EREED -

Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
not credit- credit-
impaired impaired Total
EEERENE CELGERE
EHEES &N
FEFR FEFR st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—H—H 448 1,733 2,181
Allowance recognised in profit
or loss RNEREROEE 132 1,991 2,123
As at 31 December2019and RZZ—HF+-A=1—
1 January 2020 AR=—ZE-_TF—H—H 580 3,724 4,304
Allowance recognised/ NERER/ (BE)MAE
(reversed) in profit or loss 2,045 (179 1,866
As at 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZTF
T=E=—F 2,625 3,545 6,170
The Group writes off a trade receivable EHERBERNETS AR AR

when there is information indicating that
the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the
trade receivables are over two years past
due, whichever occurs earlier. The Group
may take legal action against the debtors
to recover the amount due.

B B T PR B B30 R R T g
Yom kR (fanEB AR
BREAWERRF > oA
5 8 W AR 5K 8 HA R B R A
B MERFHLEELE) K
SESMHE 5 BB -
RER B R HHE R A REUA
1T AR B B EARIE -
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31. £@ITE®m)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) <SBEAKRSEEERBE®G
policies (Continued)
(i)  Liquidity risk (i) FEESEE
The Group’s liquidity position is monitored RARIEEREFHBHEFRIT
closely by the management of the HERRRENTEKF - &
Company by maintaining an adequate VERRAEE 2 REE M
level of bank balances and cash. The Moo TREFFIANEEIENTE
following table details the Group’s PRIBEZHBRELH - Z
remaining contractual maturity for its KIOBBAEEAETZNZ
non-derivative financial liabilities. The =P HEREMEEZ R
table has been drawn up based on the RREMEFN °
undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay.
On demand Total
or less than 31-90 91-365  Over 365 undiscounted  Carrying
30 days days days days  cash flows amount
REXKS, ARRRS
HW0R  31Z90R 91Z3650 HBi@6SH  HEBAE g
HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT & AT AT & AT
As at 31 December 2020 R-E_8f
TeEET=E
Non-interest bearing TiE
Trade and other payables ~ ERREMERE
F: 26,968 21,535 10,616 - 59,139 59,139
Lease liabilities HESE 91 67 177 948 1,283 1,217
21,079 21,602 10,793 948 60,422 60,356
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
s
Non-interest bearing MitE
Trade and other payables 25 [ £ fh e (B3 43,909 12,156 14,054 - 70,119 70,119
Lease liabilities REEE 37 112 298 40 857 814
43,946 12,268 14,352 40 70,976 70,933
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31. £@ITE®)
(¢)  Fair value (c) 2A¥E

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

TREENEBABECAFEIR
BERBRRSRESM I ARE
RIRAETE -

ARBEERE  REEAMBHRRK
NIRBHEUACTRCEREERS
BAGBZREEREAFERES -

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BEEAERZS
During the current year, the Group entered into the REFR - NEBE LEERGR S HET N3
following transactions with related parties: 5
Name Nature of transactions 2020 2019
CA Y RHILE ZEZBF T NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET 8T
Glory Mark Electronic Limited (‘GMEL”) (note 1) Rental paid by the Group N/A 152
BEEFERAR(ERETFERAR ) (M) AEEENHESE ~ER
Billion Mass Limited (“Billion Mass”) (note 1) Rental paid by the Group 224 1,115
BERRAR([BE])(PHEET) AEEENESE
San Chen Company (“San Chen”) (note 2) Rental paid by the Group N/A 152
W AR AR (L) (P EE2) AEBENESE TEA
Ms. Yu Lan (note 3) Rental paid by the Group — 122
BPEE 2 £ (Ki=E3) AEBENEE
PT Shenzhen (note 4) Cost of service rendered paid by the 138 4,415
Group
AR (HE4) AEEE RERBKA
PT Shenzhen (note 4) Rental paid by the Group 1,930 2,476
AR (HE4) AEEENES
Well Mark Industrial (Hong Kong) Limited Club debenture was disposed by — 372
(“Well Mark”) (note 5) the Group
BEIE(EE)ARRR(TEE]) (M5) AEEHEGMES
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ 2020
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32.

150

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Mr. Pang Kuo-Shi and Mr. Wong Chun, former
directors and/or shareholders of the Company,
together hold 79% controlling interest in GMEL and
100% controlling interest in Billion Mass. Mr. Pang
Kuo-Shi resigned on 5 December 2019 and Mr. Wong
Chun resigned his position of non-executive director
on 30 June 2020.

San Chen is 42.75% owned by Mr. Pang Kuo-Shi.
Ms. Yu Lan is the spouse of Mr. Pang Kuo-Shi.

Mr. Wang Li Feng, a director and/or a shareholder of
the Company has an indirect equity interest of 27.6%
in PT Shenzhen.

Well Mark is controlled by Mr. Wong Chun, the former

non-executive director and honorary vice chairman of
the Company.

Details of the key management remuneration are set out
in Note 7.

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A

32.

BRELRS (®)
i3k z&@aﬂﬁﬁ§$&/ﬁiﬂﬁ%§%¢&

Hiz2:
HiaE3:

Kiat4:

HiaE5:

EREAECHFABERETERA
79% PR M I B 8 2 EP I AR A o FE
BBEAHER_T-NF+-ARBEE

FEERERE_ZTFA=1THE
EFERITE SR o

JEEBIER S AL VR 1L 3R 42.75 % s o
BER Tt RERELE 2B -
AAREER,/HRREEE T EME

FrARBRY27.6% #Ez o

BERAARAFATEERRER T

REE ) o

TEEBEABZHIFFISHNET o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & - &

=

e MBRRME
—FET-AS+-ALEE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. MBATEE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 R_E-_EER T AF+_A=1+—
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: Az ARBEZEMBEARGEBAT
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up issued
Form of business  registration/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HMRL/ERS BRARERRE/ ARRfZBRT
WEAREH RBRRYS XY HMER RAEE/ERERLA ITER
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
2020 2019 2020 2019
Z8I8F TN C8S8F CTONE
Asia-Link Technology Limited  limited liability British Virgin Islands/ ~ US$50,000 Ordinary - = 100% 100%  Trading of connectivity products
company Taiwan shares mainly for computers and peripheral
products in the USA, investment
holding
THREERAR AREAAT ABRARES/AE 50000k EER EXEEETERNENREAREE
mZERERRRERR
Dongguan Glory Mark limited liability PRC HK$15,100,000 Paid - - 100% 100%  Manufacture of connectivity products
Electronic Co., Ltd. company up registered mainly for computers and peripheral
(Note b) capital products
REBRETERAR BREERA Gl 15,100,000/ 7c4 & HETEARN SRR AR BER
(e i AL
Glory Mark Electronic Limited ~ limited liability British Virgin Islands/ ~ US$50,000 Ordinary - - 100% 100%  Trading of connectivity products
(Note a) company Taiwan shares mainly for computers and peripheral
products in South East Asia
BRETARAT(Mia) BREEAA EEEBRES/AE 50000XTEBR ERAREETERNERREERE
EmESER
Glory Mark Electronic Limited ~ limited liability Samoa/Taiwan US$50,000 Ordinary - - 100% 100%  Trading of connectivity products
company shares mainly for computers and peripheral
products
BRETARAR BREERA BEL/ 8k 50,000% 0 Sk EETERNERR B SR RER
BER
Glory Mark International limited liability British Virgin Islands/  US$400 Ordinary 100% 100% - — Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited company Hong Kong shares
BRER(RE)ERAR  BREEAT ARARREE/EE A0ETERRK REAR
Dongguan Asia-Link limited liability PRC HK$62,260,000 Paid - - 100% 100%  Manufacture of connectivity products
Technology Ltd. company up registered mainly for computers and peripheral
capital products
FROBNABTARAT ARAGAA 48 62,260 20047412 RELZRRERRRERAERL K
AR BER
Asia-Link (Fogang) Electronic  limited liability PRC US$3,150,000 Paid - - 100% 100%  Manufacture of connectivity products
Limited company up registered mainly for computers and peripheral
capital products
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E —ZT - E4+—HA=+—HIIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. KIEBATFE®)

Place of

incorporation/ Paid up issued

Form of business  registration/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/

Name of subsidiary structure operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities

HRRL/#R/  ERORARRE/ KA ZERT
WEAREE EHRENS EXnY Balii-u RAEE/ FRERLH TEER

Directly Indirectly
E# %

2020 2019 2020 2019
SRCRE ST ONE OCRCRE CTONE

CHBE)ETERAY  ARARAR ME 3,150,000 412 HETERNERR AR RN &
e BER
Dongguan Glory Markand  limited liability PRC HK$24,500,000 - = 100% - Manufacture of connectivity products
Asia-Link Technology company Paid up mainly for computers and peripheral
Co., ,Ltd. (Note 0 registered capital products
REBROHENERAR  BREEAA mE 24,500, 0005 7T81 R HETZRRERLAERBERL
(M) e ERER
PT Design International limited liability British Virgin Islands/  US$50,000 Ordinary 100% 100% - - Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited company Hong Kong shares
HEGHERERERAR  BRELAT AEEERES/AS S0000ETEAR AR
Pt Design (QH) Limited limited liability PRC HK$2,000,000 Paid - - 100% 100%  Provision of comprehensive
company up registered architectural service
capital
ARG (R ERAR ARARAR e 2,000,000 412 RERERERS
AR
PT Design International limited liability Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding and provision of
company Ordinary shares comprehensive architectural service
B ER ERELERA &k 1,000,000% ¢ &3 REBRRIE 2 ARERS
i
Note: Hiat -
(a) The subsidiary had established a branch, namely Glory (@ ZHBRARRAEK L —Ha R F - 8l
Mark Electronic Limited — Taiwan Branch (the “GME %ﬁ)@e%?ﬁﬁﬁ@ 7 BESRRI([IEEE
Branch”) in Taiwan. The GME Branch is engaged in FHRA]) - BRERETHARNEES
trading of connectivity products mainly for computers FEAR Eaﬂ‘“&ﬂi% SEEm I ERE
and peripheral products. an ©
(b) The shares of the subsidiary were fully pledged (b) RER - KB A R A IR 3 2 50K 3 1F
as security for the loan facility of RMB29,000,000 AR —BBIE=FEESNERTEA
(equivalent to approximately HK$35,000,000) obtained R 29,000 0007E($HF“E’\%’735 000,000
from an independent third party during the year. The BILINER BE_ZT-_TF+-A
Group has not drawn any loan as at 31 December =+—0H  AEEWKRREIRERNER °
2020.
(© The subsidiary was set up in 3 August 2020. (© ZHBARIN T =TF\A=HK °
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities RF IR Sk F TR - BEA BB 2 7] 3
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. TREMERES

152  GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED &2 &5 (15%) R4



34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

~ e IR AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE= —E-EF+ - A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 34. AKRQTEFBER
The financial information of the Company as at 31 AR B _BFR_T—NF+_A4
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: = +—HHPHBERDT
2020 2019
—ECERF T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMENE E
Right-of-use asset EREEE 68 -
Unlisted investment in subsidiaries P BATRIELTIRE 34,510 34,432
34,578 34,432
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Other receivables E U R 3R 3,656 419
Amount due from a related company FEU—TEIREE A R FN I8 10 —
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR MRS 5,844 436
9,510 855
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBE
Other payables ﬁf@ﬁgﬁﬁém 3,883 1,368
Amounts due to subsidiaries FER B A Rl IA 38,252 28,037
Lease liability HEAE 69 =
42,204 29,405
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mE B BT (32,694) (28,550)
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,884 5,882
CAPITAL AND RESERVE AR AN R
Share capital (Note 25) A% (B 5E25) 7,040 6,400
Reserve e (5,156) (518)
TOTAL EQUITY REZS1A%R 1,884 5,882

These financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
March 2021 and are signed on behalf by:

Wang Li Feng
IEE
DIRECTOR
EE

ZEVERRER B -_—F=A=-_+5

HESESfERRET
REE

Fan Xiaoling
whL
DIRECTOR
EE
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34.

154

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 34. ZXATEEER (&)
(Continued)
Movements in the Company’s reserves are as follows: ARAREEREZSOT ¢
Retained
profits/
Share (Accumulated
premium losses) Total
RE =R
IR A7 5 E (R5HE8) et
HK$'000
(Note)
FET HK$'000 HK$'000
(H1z) 8T TFHET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NnF—H—H = 5,988 5,988
Loss and total comprehensive ERNEBEEREZERY
expense for the year piak:) = (4,586) (4,586)
Dividends (Note 10) BZE (BffzE10) — (1,920) (1,920)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hF+=H
=+—H = (518) (518)
Loss and total comprehensive R EERE2EMX
expense for the year 1a=s — (10,076) (10,076)
Issue of new shares HITER D 5,438 — 5,438
At 31 December 2020 R _TF
S 5,438 (10,594) (5,156)
oty Bt -
On 3 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a R-ZE-_ZFFXA=H AR rEBREREBILEED

placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent placed 64,000,000
placing shares at the placing price of a HK$0.1 per placing share to
certain independent placees. The net proceeds from the subscription,
net of related issued costs and expenses.

GLORY MARK HI-TECH (HOLDINGS) LIMITED /2% (3% GR A A
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NOTES SUPPORTING THE CONSOLIDATED 35. #SZReRE&RERME

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing BEITHELSBYHER
activities
Amounts due Lease
to directors liabilities
EAEERE HEAS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NFE—H—H 1,473 =
Changes from financing cash flows: MEEEFReREE

Repayment of principal portion of

MEREASHOER

lease liabilities — 33)
Repayment to directors BRTES (1,473) —
Interest paid for leases ENEERE = (4)

(1,473) (87)
Other changes: H fth
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEME - 4
New lease liabilities (Note) S aE N T) - 847
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+_A=+—8H = 814
Changes from financing cash flows: MEEHEEREE
Repayment of principal portion of HEaBEAEHBLER

lease liabilities - (1,288)

Interest paid for leases EREEFE = (49)

= (1,337)

Other changes: Hfh 2
Interest on lease liabilities HEGENE — 49
New lease liabilities (Note) HHEB BN = 2,091
Lease modification HEBH = (397)
Exchange realignment b 3, 52 = (©)
At 31 December 2020 RoE-ES+Z A=+H = 1,217
Note: Miaz:
During the year, the Group had non-cash addition to right-of-use RAFE - AREREFOHHEERYFTE Mz EEFE R
assets and lease liabilities in the same amount of HK$2,091,000 (2019: BHEEREEEENIIFR SR 5EERA2,091,000%
HK$847,000) in respect of lease arrangement for buildings. TL(=Z— N5 : 847,000/ 7T) °
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Financial Summary

R

2016

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HILEE
2017 2018 2019

2020

—ERF T —tF )\ —T—NF ZEB-FF

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FETL FEIT FETL FET FET
RESULTS ES
Revenue A 324,670 377,118 388,770 347,973 292,748
Profit/(loss) for the year FRER(E1E) 2,480 16,763 24,434 11,870 (5,122)
Profit/(loss) for the year AR AL EIEFR
attributable to: m A, (E18)
Owners of the Company RAREE A 2,953 17,004 24,456 12,255 (4,576)
Non-controlling interests el g (473) (241) (22) (385) (546)
2,480 16,763 24,434 11,870 (5,122)
At 31 December
Rn+=-—A=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—ERF ZT—+tF —T)N\F —T—NF ZBE-FF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FETT FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES XERESE
Total assets BELHE 227,736 264,714 274,869 256,445 258,022
Total liabilities BfE®E (138,490) (158,376) (154,389) (126,773) 124,833
Shareholders’ funds BRES 89,246 106,338 120,480 129,672 133,189
Shareholder’s funds ARATEGRESR
attributable to: &
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7 2 =N 88,543 105,876 120,040 129,617 133,680
Non-controlling interests JEPEAR RS 703 462 440 55 (491)
89,246 106,338 120,480 129,672 133,189
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